
 

 

 
Older People's Partnership 
Wednesday 14 March 2012 
10.00  - 11.30 am 
Boardroom, BFVA, Amber House, Market Street, 
Bracknell 
 

 

 
AGENDA 

 
Item Description Page By 

1.  Apologies for Absence  AR 

2.  Minutes and Action Points from 14 
December 2011 

1 - 6 MG 

3.  'Be Smart Be Safe' - Older People's 
Handbook 

7 - 56 LL 

4.  Bracknell Forest Bus Services 
Consultation 

57 - 62 SC 

5.  Older People's Partnership Conference 
Update 

 MH 

6.  Members Updates  All 

7.  Future Meetings  MG 

 Future meetings of the Older People’s 
Partnership will be held at 10am in the 
Boardroom at Amber House: 
 
Wednesday 20 June 2012 
Wednesday 19 September 2012 
Wednesday 12 December 2012 
Wednesday 20 March 2013 

  

 



This page is intentionally left blank



Older People's Partnership 
14 December 2011 
2.00  - 3.33 pm 
Boardroom, BFVA, Amber House, Market Street, 
Bracknell 
 

 
 
Present: Barbara Briggs, Carer's Forum 

Chris Cowap, BFVA 
Madeline Diver, CAB 
Maggie Gibbons, Age Concern Bracknell 
Martin Gilman, BFVA (Chairman) 
Mira Haynes, Bracknell Forest Council 
Simon Hendey, Bracknell Forest Council 
Bob Pennell, Age Concern Bracknell 
Abby Thomas, Bracknell Forest Council 
Councillor Clifton Thompson 
Linda Wells, Bracknell Forest Homes 
 

 
In attendance: Lynne Lidster, Bracknell Forest Council 

Amanda Roden, Bracknell Forest Council 
Vicky Vine, Bracknell Forest Council 
 

 
Apologies: Rev Michael Bentley 

Councillor Dale Birch 
Margaret Camp, LINKs 
Louise Hall, Job Centre Plus 
Gill Major, NHS Berkshire East 
Terry Pearce, Bracknell Forest Over Fifty Forum 
Chris Vaal, leisure Development Manager 
Amanda Waters, Senior Lifelong Learning Officer 
 

 
Action Points 
 
Minute Item 

59   Minutes and Action Points from 19 October 2011 
 

 The minutes of the meeting held on 19 October 2011 were agreed as a correct 
record. 
 
Matters Arising 
 
Minute 55: The action in relation to developing a stronger link between the 
Economic and Skills Development Partnership and the Older People’s Partnership 
would be followed up. 

(Action: Amanda Roden) 
 

Minute 56: The health phone number ‘111’ was on trial. The new police phone 
number ‘101’ was now operational. The 0845 phone number would be available 
for the next two to three months but the new phone number was being rolled out 

Agenda Item 2

1



   
 
 
 

 

quickly. 
 
Maggie Gibbons, the new Chief Officer of Age Concern Bracknell, was introduced 
to the group.  
 

60   Time Bank: Lynne Lidster: Head of Joint Commissioning 
 

 Lynne Lidster, Head of Joint Commissioning, gave a presentation in relation to 
Timebank; a scheme where people support others by exchanging skills, expertise 
and experience. For every hour of support given one time credit was earned and 
could be spent on support for yourself, similar to a favour exchange. 
 
People over the age of 18 could join Timebank regardless of ability, mobility, life 
experience or financial circumstances. Timebank aimed to support unpaid and 
family carers and people with support needs, to give people opportunities to learn 
and undertake activities. 
 
The scheme had been running for 12-18 months and there was an aim to expand 
on the current contacts and groups to get more people involved and interested in 
the scheme. It was a scheme of reciprocity; anyone could join and all skills were 
valued the same. The scheme was run by the Princess Royal Trust Carers Service 
(Berkshire) in partnership with Bracknell Forest Council, funded by Improvement 
and Efficiency South East and supported by Timebanking UK. 
 
Some sheltered schemes in Bracknell Forest were members of Timebank and 
meetings were held at the schemes which would earn credits for them to use. 
Vicky Vine, TASC Programme Assistant, helped to support more vulnerable 
people to take part in the scheme. Skills in Timebank included gardening, 
shopping, companionship, cooking, sewing, knitting, dog walking and photo 
editing. The scheme helped people to become more independent and time credits 
earned could be donated to others. 
 
References were taken for new members of the scheme and Vicky Vine acted as 
the main contact for exchanges. CRB checks were not needed but some people 
requested them. Timebank UK was a national scheme, it was insured and policies 
were taken from the national scheme. 
 
Contact details for Timebank in Bracknell Forest were: 07879 115 266 for phone 
calls or texts, timebank.broker@prtberks.plus.com for e-mails and the website 
address was foresttimebank.wordpress.com. Timebank could also be followed on 
Twitter @foresttimebank. 
 
Timebanking support could be undertaken on an ad-hoc basis and when a request 
for support was received an e-mail would be sent to all those registered with 
Timebank as being able to provide what was requested. There were approximately 
100 people in the scheme at present. Timebank had been presented to the Over 
50s Forum but it was suggested that it be presented to U3A and the Bracknell 
Forest Homes Tenant and Leaseholders Panel.  
 
It was suggested that Timebank could be advertised in the Bracknell Forest 
Homes quarterly newsletter in March 2012. Planning for this newsletter would be 
undertaken in January 2012. Young people at supported living schemes, such as 
Holly House and Rainforest Walk could also be approached regarding possible 

2



   
 
 
 

 

interest in the scheme.  
 

61   Older People's Partnership Conference Update 
 

 Mira Haynes, Chief Officer: Older People and Long Term Conditions, gave an 
update on the Older People’s Partnership Conference. Lynne Lidster was in the 
process of writing the strategy for the group and Lynne and Vicky Vine were 
helping to co-ordinate the conference. The main hall at Easthampstead Baptist 
Church had been booked for Friday 30 March 2012 along with Rooms 1, 2 and 3 
for lunch and stands. 
 
The project group planning the conference would meet on 9 January and 20 
January 2012 to discuss arrangements. These meetings would likely be held at 
Time Square and last approximately one hour. It was suggested that invites for the 
conference needed to be sent out early and the aim was for the invites to be sent 
out by the end of January 2012. 
 
The Older People’s Strategy needed to be revised and the aim was to launch a 
consultation regarding this at the conference. The consultation would run for three 
months from the date of the conference at the end of March 2012. It was 
suggested that Julie Rose, Sheltered Housing, Bracknell Forest Homes, may be 
able to help with this. Ideas for the conference included supporting people’s 
independence, access to welfare benefits, Citizens Advice Bureau, fuel poverty, 
Ageing Well, and opportunities in later life. 
 
Any suggestions for the conference should be forwarded to Vicky Vine 
vicky.vine@bracknell-forest.gov.uk . Responses to invites to the conference 
should be sent to BFVA. 120 people could be seated around tables in the main 
hall of the Easthampstead Baptist Church as the hall had been extended.  
 
It was suggested that companies could be approached to sponsor the conference. 

(Action: Simon Hendey/Martin Gilman)  
 

62   Minority Ethnic Elderly 
 

 The Chairman gave an update on minority ethnic elderly. A meeting of the 
Bracknell Forest Minorities Alliance had been held and there were discussions 
regarding a group of Nepalese people seen regularly out in certain areas of the 
borough. It was queried at the meeting whether a meeting place was needed for 
this ethnic group but there were dietary needs to be accounted for and cultural 
differences.  
 
Sandhurst Hall was currently being used by a Nepalese group but venues were 
needed in other parts of the borough. St Paul’s Church was reported to be building 
a community hall. It was suggested that other ethnic groups be asked if they 
needed a meeting place as well. 
 
The Bracknell Forest Minorities Alliance members, the Indian Community 
Association had also expressed an interest in a meeting place for their elderly. The 
use of community halls was felt to be a good idea and minority ethnic groups could 

3



   
 
 
 

 

then gradually merge in with other clubs being held in the halls. Bracknell Forest 
Homes had invited some Nepalese people to a sheltered scheme for a Diwali 
event. If community groups invited minority ethnic groups in, they would likely 
come in large groups and many did not speak English, but it was felt to be a good 
way of introducing minority ethnic groups to the community.  
 

63   Single Equality Scheme 
 

 Abby Thomas, Head of Community Engagement and Equalities, gave an update 
on the Single Equality Scheme. Equality objectives had been selected for 
Bracknell Forest Council, workshops had been held and the consultation was now 
on the Council’s website for eight weeks until the beginning of February 2012. This 
was a second opportunity for opinions to be gathered. 
 
There were currently 17 objectives and the aim was to reduce the objectives to 
between 10 and 12 overall. Top objectives related to safeguarding, less poverty, 
and better insulation. The final Single Equality Scheme would be published in April 
2012. Some objectives would possibly be merged together and specific actions 
would be developed to underpin the objectives. It was suggested that each agency 
at the Older People’s Partnership submit their own questionnaire regarding the 
scheme as the agencies would all have different perspectives. 

(Action: All)  
 

64   Health Update 
 

 Madeline Diver, CAB, gave an update on the ‘Shaping the Future’ consultation. 
The outcomes had been published but more work needed to be undertaken. There 
would be subsequent consultations with certain groups regarding what people 
would like at Wexham and Heatherwood. It would not be undertaken until at least 
March 2012 and there would be no change in services until it was completed. 
 
Healthspace was on the South of England Board for a final decision on 26 January 
2012. The PCT had arranged one workshop to date which was targeted at young 
people and vulnerable groups by invitation only. There would be workshops on 
urgent care but this would not affect what would be presented to the Board as the 
business plan had already been undertaken. More would possibly known after 
January 2012. 
 
Barbara Briggs, Carers’ Forum, gave an update in respect of the project on 
hospital discharge. Fifteen people had been interviewed at different times at the 
Royal Berkshire Hospital. The other two hospitals in the area would be visited as 
well but the Frimley Park visit would likely be in the new year. At the South East 
meeting on 13 December the Carers’ Forum was invited to sit on the sub group. 
The aim was to avoid unstable and inappropriate discharges. 
 
There were more people than usual in hospitals at the moment and the hospitals 
locally had been quite full for two months. A winter crisis plan was in place and at 
present Wexham Park was diverting patients to the Royal Berkshire Hospital. 
There appeared to be no specific reason for the high demand and no particular 
age groups were affected.  

4



   
 
 
 

 

 
An ‘in reach’ social worker worked with Frimley Park Hospital and multi agency 
discharge meetings were held every week from all three hospitals: Frimley, 
Wexham Park and the Royal Berkshire Hospital. If a Bracknell Forest resident 
entered a hospital further away, Bracknell Forest Council would need to help with 
the discharge back to Bracknell Forest.  
 

65   Members Updates 
 

 Housing 
 
Supporting People eligibility criteria was being revised and rationalised. At present 
some housing management and supportive services were provided. This would be 
revised to go back to just providing supportive services and funded for the next 
three years. A meeting would be held with Bracknell Forest Homes on 16 
December 2011. 
 
Age Concern Bracknell 
 
Care Day was successful with 250 people being entered. A new Chief Officer for 
Age Concern Bracknell was appointed today. An issue had arisen regarding the 
payment of invoices in relation to personalisation and managing personal budgets. 
It was found to be a complicated scheme and difficult to achieve in the time scales. 
Individual people were responsible for paying for the invoices unless a brokerage 
service was used, although support was available for people who could not 
manage their own budget. 
 
BFVA 
 
A newsletter was being drafted at present and information relating to the Older 
People’s conference would be advertised in it. The conference would likely take 
place from 10am – 3.30pm with a 9.30am registration. 
 
Bids to the Big Lottery and National Transforming Infrastructure fund had been 
submitted and the RMA and partners had signed the covenant which needed to 
relate to ex-services. The Community Cohesion Working Group was deciding on 
the criteria and applications were being received. The covenant form would be 
circulated. 

(Action: Abby Thomas) 
 

The Boeringers and Chamber of Commerce Christmas party was being held on 19 
December 2011 for the Befriending Scheme and a small amount of money would 
be used on ‘back to work for carers’ which would need to be spent between 
January and March 2012. Twenty carers were interested and there would be 
seven sessions starting at the end of January 2012. Different agencies would 
support the process. 
 
As the Older People’s Partnership Strategy was being refreshed it was suggested 
that a Sub Group be formed, as had been suggested at a previous Partnership 
meeting. Cllr Thompson, Madeline Diver, Chris Cowap, Barbara Briggs and Age 
Concern expressed an interest in being part of the Sub Group. There would be 
liaison with Lynne Lidster regarding this, as the lead on refreshing the strategy, 
and topics for discussion at the Sub Group meeting would include You Said We 

5



   
 
 
 

 

Did and Overview and Scrutiny involvement. 
(Action: Amanda Roden/Lynne Lidster) 

 
Citizens Advice Bureau (CAB) 
 
The CAB was having service issues regarding fundraising and would possibly 
need to close for an extra day due to a shortage of staff. The ‘money talks’ 
programme would be secured for another year. The cabinet office’s new advice 
services would fund the CAB to take on consumer direct at a national level but this 
would not affect the advice given by the CAB. A Comic Relief application had been 
submitted in relation to 60+ money management. There would be a presentation 
to full Council in January 2012 in relation to the share of trustees at CAB. CAB 
would need to find somewhere else in the next 12 months. 
 
Carers’ Forum 
 
106 people attended the Christmas lunch for carers held on Friday 9 December. 
Now that the main hall at Easthampstead Baptist Church had been extended it 
was more comfortable space wise and the church also had a new sound system. 
A ‘Turkey and Tinsel’ event would be held after Christmas. 
 
Bracknell Forest Council 
 
Local accounts had been written in draft form and would be brought to the next 
meeting of the Older People’s Partnership for comments. The modernisation of 
older people’s services consultation was still underway. The cost of blue badges 
for disabled people would rise from £2 for 3 years to £10 for 3 years in January 
2012.  
 
This would be the first increase since 1971 and if people were not automatically 
eligible, such as being in receipt of the higher rate of Disabled Living Allowance, 
they would be assessed. There would be a Co-ordinator role at the Council to 
administer the blue badges, whereas previously a GP had undertaken the 
assessments. A new badge and booklet would be brought to the next meeting to 
show members of the Partnership. 

(Action: Mira Haynes) 
 

The blue badges would be issued by Northgate in future so that they would be 
harder to duplicate and forge. Bracknell Forest Council was only responsible for 
blue badge enforcement on highways and not in public car parks. 

66   Future Meetings 
 

 Future meetings of the Older People’s Partnership will be held at 10am in the 
Boardroom at Amber House: 
 
Wednesday 14 March 2012 
Wednesday 20 June 2012 
Wednesday 19 September 2012 
Wednesday 12 December 2012 
Wednesday 20 March 2013 

 
 
 

6



 

 
 
 
 
Below are a small selection of actual outcomes resulting from the delivery of the handbook 
identified by recipients on their feedback forms.  
 
• Mr AJ  aged 75-84, “Reading the handbook made me check a number of safety 

factors. I found it informative and will retain it for reference.” 
• Ms BK  aged 75-84, “I made one immediate change due to the book, for phone 

privacy.” 
• Mrs DM aged 75-84, “Although I have been doing gentle exercise via hospital 

recommendation. I find these in your book very good.” 
• Mrs IB aged 65-74, “Cold Calling – I have put Essex CC sticker on front of house 

now.” 
• Mr PD aged 75-84, “Our boiler has been condemned and I found out from 'Warm 

Front' that we are eligible for £300.” 
 

Agenda Item 3

7



8

This page is intentionally left blank



Your Logo Here

9



Your Personalised
Introduction Page - 

to address the reader

10



© Copyright and Published by CSEF (Registered Charity Numbers: 1103344 and SC037714).
Written by Emily Capstick and Godfrey Hall MA Dip. Ed. F.Coll.P.; Design and layout by Jane Hart.

Thanks to South Lanarkshire Community Safety Partnership, Salford Primary Care Trust and Essex County Council for their assistance with this resource.

No part of this publication may be reproduced without prior permission from the publisher. 
The publisher shall not be liable for any accidents, losses or malpractice arising from or relating to the activities in the publication. 

It Won’t Happen To Me ..................................................................................................................2

Telecare ............................................................................................................................................................................................3

Bogus And Burglary ................................................................................................................................4

Keeping Safe And Secure At Home ............................................11

Fire... Electricity And Gas................................................................................................17

Energy Efficiency ........................................................................................................................................23

Benefits And Money Worries ..............................................................................25

Nuisance Neighbours ..................................................................................................................27

Getting Out, Travel And Holidays..........................................................30

Safe In Your Garden ..........................................................................................................................33

Keeping Healthy And Active..................................................................................34

Medication ........................................................................................................................................................................37

Food ......................................................................................................................................................................................................39

Falls ........................................................................................................................................................................................................41

Contact Details..................................................................................................................................................44

Index  | 1

ContentsContents

DRAFTIt Won’t Happen To Me ....................................................................................................................................................................................................................................2

........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................3

Bogus And BurglaryBogus And Burglary ..............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Keeping Safe And Secure At HomeKeeping Safe And Secure At Home ........................................................................................

Fire... Electricity And GasFire... Electricity And Gas................................................................................................................................................................................................

Energy EfficiencyEnergy Efficiency ..............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Benefits And Money WorriesBenefits And Money Worries

Nuisance NeighboursNuisance Neighbours ....................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Getting Out, Travel And HolidaysGetting Out, Travel And Holidays

Safe In Your GardenSafe In Your Garden

Keeping Healthy And ActiveKeeping Healthy And Active

MedicationMedication ..............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

FoodFood ..............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................DRAFT

11



Throughout our lives we all
have to make decisions.

Look at these situations below.
What would you do?

• You are on your own and something
heavy falls off the top of a cupboard, 
what would you do?

• You see a young person fall over in
the street. 

• You are in a shop and you see 
someone stealing a box of cakes.

• Your gas and electricity bills seem 
to have increased a lot and you
are having to cut back on your 
heating.

• The price of milk in your local 
supermarket has increased by 
20p a litre.

• Your partner has not been well for 
some time and you are finding it 
hard to cope.

Joan and Henry who are over 90
live in a small bungalow on a busy
road. Every day Joan goes out to
the local shop for a paper and
also to get the food for a meal.
She has to cross two busy roads
to get to the shop and as time is
passing she is finding it more and
more difficult.

Where might they go for help?

| It Won’t Happen To Me2

It Won’t 
Happen To Me
It Won’t 
Happen To Me

DRAFTThroughout our lives we all
have to make decisions.have to make decisions.

Look at these situations below.Look at these situations below.

• You are on your own and something• You are on your own and something
heavy falls off the top of a cupboard, heavy falls off the top of a cupboard, 
what would you do?what would you do?

• You see a young person fall over in• You see a young person fall over in
the street. 

• You are in a shop and you see • You are in a shop and you see 
someone stealing a box of cakes.someone stealing a box of cakes.

• Your gas and electricity bills seem • Your gas and electricity bills seem 
to have increased a lot and youto have increased a lot and you
are having to cut back on your are having to cut back on your 
heating.heating.

• The price of milk in your local • The price of milk in your local 
supermarket has increased by supermarket has increased by DRAFTJoan and Henry who are over 90

live in a small bungalow on a busy
road. Every day Joan goes out to
the local shop for a paper and
also to get the food for a meal.
She has to cross two busy roads
to get to the shop and as time is
passing she is finding it more and
more difficult.

Where might they go for help?

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

12



Are you worried about care?
Telecare provides assistance at the
touch of a button. Some of the new
sensors will even call for help
automatically without you having to do
anything at all. It can be set up to
contact a local council Careline or alert
your partner or a family member
directly. 

Sometimes it is difficult to remember
telephone numbers, or it is hard to
press the right number on the keypad. 

So there are phones with photograph
buttons that act as speed dials,
making calls easy.

Other telemonitoring systems are set
up to allow family members, who live
remotely to play a part in supporting
people to live at home.

Telecare can make a real difference to
your life so that you can stay with your
family. It provides reassurance to you
and those around you.

If you would like more information
on Telecare solutions to help you,

contact your local Careline 
(see page 44 for contact details).

Telecare

3

Telecare
4. Response
arranged
appropriate to
your needs.

or a sensor raises 
an alert.

2. The unit is
activated and alerts
the Telecare control
centre via the
telephone line.

3. A trained
operator
answers your
call and speaks
to you through
the unit.

Telecare  |

1. You press the
button...

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFTAre you worried about care?
Telecare provides assistance at theTelecare provides assistance at the
touch of a button. Some of the newtouch of a button. Some of the new
sensors will even call for help
automatically without you having to doautomatically without you having to do
anything at all. It can be set up toanything at all. It can be set up to
contact a local council Careline or alertcontact a local council Careline or alert
your partner or a family memberyour partner or a family member

Sometimes it is difficult to rememberSometimes it is difficult to remember
telephone numbers, or it is hard totelephone numbers, or it is hard to
press the right number on the keypad. press the right number on the keypad. 

So there are phones with photographSo there are phones with photograph
buttons that act as speed dials,buttons that act as speed dials,
making calls easy.making calls easy.

Other telemonitoring systems are setOther telemonitoring systems are set
up to allow family members, who liveup to allow family members, who live
remotely to play a part in supportingremotely to play a part in supporting
people to live at home.people to live at home.DRAFT

DRAFT4. Response
arranged
appropriate to
your needs.

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

13



To register with the 
MAILING

Preference Service

call 
0845 703 4599

To register with the 
TELEPHONE

Preference Service

call 
0845 070 070 7

Unwelcome Visitors
By registering with the ‘Telephone
Preference Service’ and the 
‘Mailing Preference Service’ 
you can stop most unwanted calls 
and post. 

Under Government legislation, it is
unlawful to make unsolicited direct
marketing calls to individuals who 
have indicated that they do not want 
to receive such calls.

| Bogus And Burglary4

Bogus 
And Burglary
Bogus 
And Burglary

NOTE: When you get through to either service, hold the line 
and you can speak to someone in person.

DRAFT

call 
0845 703 4599DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT
To register with the 

MAILING
Preference Service

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFTTelephoneTelephone

Mailing Preference Service’ 
you can stop most unwanted calls 

Under Government legislation, it isUnder Government legislation, it is
unlawful to make unsolicited directunlawful to make unsolicited direct
marketing calls to individuals who marketing calls to individuals who 
have indicated that they do not want have indicated that they do not want 
to receive such calls.to receive such calls.

DRAFT

DRAFT

14



• Most people who come to your 
door are genuine. As we get 
older we may worry about 
becoming a victim of crime.

• This worry or fear can have an 
enormous impact on our lives, 
making us hesitant to engage 
with our neighbours or have a 
full and active life.

• The following information will 
enable you to feel more 
confident in your own home 
and more able to assert 
yourself.

When someone comes to your
door always Stop, Chain and
Check...
• Are you expecting anyone?
• Do they have an appointment?
• Put on the chain or door bar before 

you open the door. 
• Ask for an identity (ID) card and 

check it carefully.
• Check their photograph and their 

name.
• Check the company phone number 

in your phone book or on a bill and 
call to check their ID.

• Never feel embarrassed to ask them 
to give you the card - do not take 
the chain off, get them to pass it 
through and then check it.

If you are 
unsure, ask 
the caller to
call back
when there
is someone
else with you
or to make
an official
appointment 
by letter. 

GENUINE

CALLERS

WILL NOT

MIND.

Bogus And Burglary  | 5

Never let someone into your home unless you are sure of them. 
NEVER GIVE YOUR BANK DETAILS TO AN UNINVITED CALLER.

DRAFT

DRAFT
Ask for an identity (ID) card and Ask for an identity (ID) card and 
check it carefully.check it carefully.
Check their photograph and their Check their photograph and their 

Check the company phone number Check the company phone number 
in your phone book or on a billin your phone book or on a bill and 
call to check their ID.call to check their ID.

• Never feel embarrassed to ask them Never feel embarrassed to ask them 
to give you the card - to give you the card - do not take do not take 
the chain offthe chain off, get them to pass it 
through and then check it.through and then check it.

DRAFT

15



Your doorstep, your decision
Keeping control, be careful of these comments.

‘I’m on your doorstep.
I give you a free gift,
You give me a sale.’

| Bogus And Burglary6

‘I rush you into a
decision to buy now or
lose a special discount.’

‘I get you to agree with
me. Then it’s hard for
you to refuse the sale.’

‘I tell you three people
down your road bought

from me last week.’

DRAFT
I give you a free gift,
You give me a sale.’

DRAFT

DRAFT

‘I get you to agree withDRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

16



People come knocking on our doors and can be very persuasive. 

This is what they might say:

“What a beautiful 
hanging basket. 

I love gardening too…”
(I’m your friend, 

trust me…)

“This is a limited offer…
only available until Friday.”

(Better buy quickly. 
You’re lucky I’m offering

this to you.)

The Doorstep Selling
Regulations provide a 7 day
‘cooling off’ period for
contracts made in YOUR home,
during which you can cancel. 
If the company are members of
the Direct Selling Association
then you will have 14 days in
which to cancel.

This applies to goods and
services above £35 in value but
only if the visit was unsolicited
(or follows an unsolicited
telephone approach).

“We are so proud 
of what we sell, we are 
giving you this free gift.”
(You should listen to me

because I’ve given 
you a present.)

“I AM NOT
INTERESTED, 
THANK-YOU. 
GOOD-BYE!”

Bogus And Burglary  | 7

“The Government has 
just proven that this is 
the best thing ever.”
(The experts say you 

should buy this.)
“You have won a
competition…”
(You are lucky and
I am offering you

a prize…)

Doorstep selling takes place in two ways:

Solicited: where the consumer requests the
visit by the salesperson.
Unsolicited: where the consumer DOES
NOT request the visit, for example, a
salesperson makes a surprise visit to offer
work.
If the goods cost more than £35 then the
seller MUST GIVE consumers their
cancellation rights in writing if not they may
commit a CRIMINAL OFFENCE.
If they do not, or you are not sure, phone
Trading Standards as soon as possible to
check and they will investigate.

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT
“What a beautiful 
hanging basket. 

I love gardening too…”
(I’m your friend, 

trust me…)

The Doorstep SellingThe Doorstep Selling
Regulations Regulations provide a 7 dayprovide a 7 day
‘cooling off’ period for‘cooling off’ period for
contracts made in YOUR home,contracts made in YOUR home,
during which you can cancel. during which you can cancel. 
If the company are members ofIf the company are members of
the Direct Selling Associationthe Direct Selling Association
then you will have 14 days inthen you will have 14 days in
which to cancel.which to cancel.DRAFT“I AM NOT

INTERESTED, 
THANK-YOU. 
GOOD-BYE!”

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT
“The Government has 
just proven that this is 
the best thing ever.”
(The experts say you 

should buy this.)

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT
Doorstep selling takes place in two ways:Doorstep selling takes place in two ways:

DRAFT
Doorstep selling takes place in two ways:

Solicited:Solicited:
visit by the salesperson.visit by the salesperson.

17



‘Distraction burglary’
This is when the thief tricks their 
way into a person’s home rather
than breaking in.

• The most common method is to 
pretend to work for either the 
council, the Police, or a utility 
company. 

• They may also ask if they can 
have a glass of water or go to 
the toilet. 

• They may pretend to be 
door-to-door sales people. 

• They can be male or female 
and use children to distract 
the person.

Thieves may also pretend to be
tradespeople. They will often carry
out very poor work, sometimes no
work at all and can charge a huge
amount for work that may not 
need doing.

If you want a job done:
• Ask your friends or neighbours if 

they can recommend someone.

• Get two or three quotes from 
different companies.

• Always agree a cost before the 
work starts.

• Never pay someone cash before 
they do the job.

• Never let workmen or women know 
that you keep cash at home. Never 
accept a lift from them to go 
to the bank to collect money.

• Do not give them keys to your home 
- whenever possible, be present or 
ask a neighbour to be there.

• If you are not happy with their work 
then ask a friend or family member 
to be present when you talk to them 
about it.

• If in doubt contact your local Trading 
Standards Office.

| Bogus And Burglary8

REMEMBER: STOP, CHAIN, CHECK!

DRAFTThieves may also pretend to be
tradespeople. They will often carrytradespeople. They will often carry
out very poor work, sometimes no
work at all and can charge a hugework at all and can charge a huge
amount for work that may not amount for work that may not 

• Never pay someone cash before • Never pay someone cash before 
they do the job.they do the job.

• Never let workmen or women know • Never let workmen or women know 
that you keep cash at home. Never that you keep cash at home. Never 
accept a lift from them to go accept a lift from them to go 
to the bank to collect money.to the bank to collect money.

• Do not give them keys to your home • Do not give them keys to your home 
- whenever possible, be present or - whenever possible, be present or 
ask a neighbour to be there.ask a neighbour to be there.

• If you are not happy with their work • If you are not happy with their work 
then ask a friend or family member then ask a friend or family member 
to be present when you talk to them to be present when you talk to them 
about it.about it.

• If in doubt contact your local Trading • If in doubt contact your local Trading 
Standards Office.Standards Office.

DRAFT

18



And finally… three things to remember:

1. Check the seller’s identity

Were you expecting them? 
If not, be very cautious.

Always ask for an identity card. 
Look at it carefully to be sure 
they are who they say they are. 
Check their identity by calling 
their company using a number 
from the phonebook.

2. Take control – you ask 
the questions

If you decide to have a meeting 
with a doorstep seller, make sure
you are in control. 
Remember it is a business 
situation, not a chat with a friend.

It is also a good idea to have
someone with you.

3. Do not sign on the spot – 
shop around

How do you know if the price 
is right? Check with other
companies offering the same
product first. Do not be hurried 
into a decision even if they offer 
you a discount. 

Contact your local council if 
you need help.

Bogus And Burglary  | 9

DRAFT

DRAFT
3. Do not sign on the spot – 3. Do not sign on the spot – 

shop aroundshop around

How do you know if the price How do you know if the price 
is right? Check with otheris right? Check with other
companies offering the samecompanies offering the same
product first. Do not be hurried product first. Do not be hurried 
into a decision even if they offer into a decision even if they offer 
you a discount. you a discount. DRAFTIf you decide to have a meeting If you decide to have a meeting 
with a doorstep seller, make surewith a doorstep seller, make sure

Remember it is a business 
situation, not a chat with a friend.situation, not a chat with a friend.

It is also a good idea to haveIt is also a good idea to have
someone with you.someone with you.

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

19



NO COLD
CALLING ZONE

Contact your local Community Police
Officer to see if they have a door sticker
available - examples below

Be very cautious about giving
personal information over the
telephone when the caller has
rung you. Con-people may ask
things like your address, age,
when do you typically do your
shopping, for example, when
are you out of the house…

These people are
‘PROFESSIONALS’ at what
they do. Many people do not
report crimes, or even
mention it to friends and
family, because they may
be… embarrassed;
frightened or intimidated;
unaware that they are a
victim; feeling great loss and
powerlessness.

If this happens to you please
REPORT IT TO THE POLICE
it may well stop the same
thing happening to someone
else. 

This is your home and your
life. No-one else should be in
it unless you want them there.

| Bogus And Burglary10

TRADING STANDARDS NOTICE

UNINVITED TRADERS ARE
NOT WELCOME HERE

If you receive a cold call from a trader contact:DRAFT

DRAFT
NO COLD

CALLING ZONE
DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFTvictim; feeling great loss and

If this happens to you pleaseIf this happens to you please
REPORT IT TO THE POLICEREPORT IT TO THE POLICE
it may well stop the sameit may well stop the same
thing happening to someonething happening to someone

This is your home and yourThis is your home and your
life. No-one else should be inlife. No-one else should be in
it unless you want them there.it unless you want them there.

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT
TRADING

DRAFT

DRAFT

20



Burglars are opportunists. Unlike those
we see on television, burglars do not
tend to ‘stake out a joint’ and lay
complex plans. It is much more likely
that they are passing and see an open

window, an unlocked door, something 
of interest or value sitting nearby… 

There are several simple and affordable
things that you can do to put them off.

Keeping Safe And Secure At Home  | 11

Burglars are opportunists. If they are passing and see an open window or an
unlocked door they may take a chance and break in. 

There are several simple and affordable things that you can do to put 
them off...

Always lock your doors, close all windows,
remove all keys and set your alarm even if 
you are going out for just a short time. 

Do not leave the keys in the door or
window, even when you are at home. 
Lock the door, remove the keys and keep
them out of sight but near to hand.

Do not leave spare keys outside - 
criminals know where to look. If you can 
fit a key safe.

Keep garden tools and ladders locked
away.

Mark your property with your postcode 
and house number.

Only keep money you absolutely need 
in the house.

Keeping Safe And
Secure At Home
Keeping Safe And
Secure At Home

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFTBurglars are opportunists. If they are passing and see an open window or anBurglars are opportunists. If they are passing and see an open window or an
unlocked door they may take a chance and break in. unlocked door they may take a chance and break in. 

There are several simple and affordable things that you can do to put There are several simple and affordable things that you can do to put 

Always lock your doors, close all windows,
remove all keys and set your alarm even if 
you are going out for just a short time. 

Do not leave the keys in the door or
window, even when you are at home. 
Lock the door, remove the keys and keep
them out of sight but near to hand.

Do not

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

21



Check that… ... To do by (date)

Doors are in good condition (including hinges).

Front and back doors have deadlocks
(which can only be unlocked with a key).

Window locks are fitted.

Keys are kept somewhere safe, where they can be 
found in an emergency.

Valuables are out of sight. 

Belongings are marked. 

I have serial numbers of electrical goods. 

I have got photographs of my valuables.

I have written a list of all my bank accounts and my 
pension/allowance books. They are kept in a safe place.

The side or back gate is kept locked and fences are secure. 

I have got an outside light, which comes on automatically
when it is dark.

The garage is kept locked.

I have joined the local Neighbourhood Watch Scheme.

Your Crime Prevention Officer (at your local Police Station) can offer advice
about alarms. 

Home insurance will need minimum security standards such as British
Standard mortice locks and window locks. If you have good security and are a
member of Neighbourhood Watch, insurance may be cheaper.

If you think there is someone in your home...
DO NOT GO IN!

Call the Police from a neighbour’s house.

If you are inside, call the Police as soon as possible.

REMEMBER: you and your family are the most 
precious things in your home!

3

| Keeping Safe And Secure At Home12

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFTI have written a list of all my bank accounts and my I have written a list of all my bank accounts and my 

DRAFTpension/allowance books. They are kept in a safe place.pension/allowance books. They are kept in a safe place.

DRAFTThe side or back gate is kept locked and fences are secure. The side or back gate is kept locked and fences are secure. 

I have got an outside light, which comes on automaticallyI have got an outside light, which comes on automatically

DRAFT

DRAFT
The garage is kept locked.The garage is kept locked.

I have joined the local Neighbourhood WI have joined the local Neighbourhood Watch Scheme.atch Scheme.I have joined the local Neighbourhood WI have joined the local Neighbourhood WI have joined the local Neighbourhood W

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT
Crime Prevention Officer Crime Prevention Officer (at your local Police Station) can offer advice(at your local Police Station) can offer advice

about alarms. about alarms. 

Home Home insuranceinsurance will need minimum security standards such as Britishwill need minimum security standards such as British
Standard mortice locks and window locks. If you have good security and are aStandard mortice locks and window locks. If you have good security and are a
member of Neighbourhood Watch, insurance may be cheaper.member of Neighbourhood Watch, insurance may be cheaper.

DRAFT

If you think there is someone in your home...

Call the Police from a neighbour’s house.

22



Keeping Safe And Secure At Home  | 13

Keeping Safe at Home
Almost one million older people a year
go to hospital because they have had
an accident around the home. 

You can cut down the risks of having
an accident by looking after yourself
and your home. 

You may need small jobs doing around
the home. If you do contact your local
Adult Services or Age UK for help.

For larger jobs, like roofing, major
electrical, plumbing and building work,
the Council may help you to apply for
grants as well as find reliable
tradespeople. 

If you do have an accident at
home, who will you call? 

You can register with Careline, which
lets you call someone in an

emergency. Staff will come to your
home 24 hours a day, 365 days a year,
to see what the emergency is and 
to help you. 

Contact details for Careline are at the
back of this handbook or you can
contact your local Council or Age UK.

Sheltered Housing
Sheltered Housing can give you the
best of both worlds – living
independently in your own home while
being safe and secure in the
knowledge that there is a warden
nearby. It is an opportunity to meet
new people and make new friends.
Many schemes have groups which
arrange social activities. Use the
contacts list at the back of the
handbook for more information.

DRAFT

DRAFTYou can register with Careline, whichYou can register with Careline, which
lets you call someone in an

Sheltered HousingSheltered Housing
Sheltered Housing can give you theSheltered Housing can give you the
best of both worlds – livingbest of both worlds – living
independently in your own home whileindependently in your own home while
being safe and secure in thebeing safe and secure in the
knowledge that there is a wardenknowledge that there is a warden
nearby. It is an opportunity to meetnearby. It is an opportunity to meet
new people and make new friends.new people and make new friends.
Many schemes have groups whichMany schemes have groups which
arrange social activities. Use thearrange social activities. Use the
contacts list at the back of thecontacts list at the back of the
handbook for more information.handbook for more information.

23



Buy with Confidence – Trading
Standards Approved is a scheme
launched to promote and support
good, reliable tradesmen and
retailers, whilst in turn increasing
consumer protection and
confidence by providing an
approved trader list, initially in the
area of renewable energy and
energy saving products and
services.

• Member companies have been 
independently checked by staff 
from the authorities’ Trading 
Standards Services.

• Only if businesses 
pass stringent checks 
can they display the ‘Buy With 
Confidence’ logo. Details of firms 
you can trust should be available by 
phoning your local council or by 
going onto their website.

If you have had good service from a
company that is not on the scheme,
the website enables you to
recommend them for membership. 

If you do not have access to the
internet, full details are available 
by calling Consumer Direct on 
08454 040 506.

| Keeping Safe And Secure At Home14

Buy with Confidence – 
Trading Standards Approved

DRAFT

DRAFT
you can trust should be available by you can trust should be available by 
phoning your local council or by phoning your local council or by 
going onto their website.going onto their website.

If you have had good service from aIf you have had good service from a
company that is not on the scheme,company that is not on the scheme,
the website enables you tothe website enables you to
recommend them for membership. recommend them for membership. 

If you do not have access to theIf you do not have access to the
internet, full details are available internet, full details are available 
by calling Consumer Direct on by calling Consumer Direct on 
08454 040 506.08454 040 506.

24



Carers -
Do you care for a partner, relative or friend?

Who are carers?
Carers look after family, partners or
friends in need of help because they
are ill, frail or have a disability. The
care they provide is unpaid and may
include:
• Personal care, such as helping with 

washing and dressing.
• Eating or feeding and taking 

medicines.
• Getting out and about in the home 

or outside.
• Emotional support and company.

Carers:
• May themselves be unwell or have 

a disability.
• Do not necessarily have to live in the 

same house as the person they are 
caring for.

• May be providing physical and/or 
emotional care.

It could be you...
• There are 6 million carers in the UK.
• Every day another 6,000 people take 

on a caring responsibility.

So, you are not alone...
Becoming a carer can be confusing,
bewildering and frightening. No-one is
super human and all carers need help,
support and back-up.

Find out what support is available in your area. This may include:
• Services to enable you to have a break.
• Help with household tasks.
• Training to assist with the caring role.
• A piece of equipment to make caring easier.
• Emotional support.
• Benefits advice.

Keeping Safe And Secure At Home  | 15

For further information telephone: NHS Carers Direct: 0808 8020202
Carers UK Advice Line: 0808 8087777

The Princess Royal Trust for Carers: 0844 800 4361

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT• May themselves be unwell or have • May themselves be unwell or have 

• Do not necessarily have to live in the • Do not necessarily have to live in the 
same house as the person they are same house as the person they are 

• May be providing physical and/or • May be providing physical and/or 
emotional care.emotional care.

It could be you...It could be you...
• There are 6 million carers in the UK.• There are 6 million carers in the UK.
• Every day another 6,000 people take • Every day another 6,000 people take 

on a caring responsibility.on a caring responsibility.

Find out what support is available in your area. This may include:
• Services to enable you to have a break.
• Help with household tasks.
• Training to assist with the caring role.
• A piece of equipment to make caring easier.
• Emotional support.DRAFT

25



Relatives and 
Residents Association
It is often difficult for relatives with
loved ones in care to get advice as
there are so many questions they
need to ask.

This is where the RRA can help. 
Set up to provide advice for older
people who are in residential care
they are able to help with advice 
and information. 

The RRA are also involved in
projects linked with older people 
and work in close co-operation with
organisations such as Help the Aged
and Age Concern. 

Their advice line is open 
Monday to Friday 
from 9.30 until 16.30 
on: 020 7359 8136

Keysafe
Keysafe is a small combination lock
safe which is fitted to the outside of
your property. A number is then
programmed into the safe. 

If there is a problem or someone
official needs to get into your home
then they can access the Keysafe
using the number. This is ideal in an
emergency or for social service
visits. Many authorities help with the
supply of these safes.

Emergency Planning
How to Prepare for an Emergency?
Fire, flooding, power or water cuts,
extreme weather, accidents. Sometimes
emergencies do happen but you can
help yourself by being prepared. Here
are some ideas that may help you cope.
Before an Emergency 
Key a friend or family member’s 
telephone number into your mobile 
phone and call it ‘ICE’. 
‘ICE’ means ‘In Case of Emergency’
In the event that you cannot make a
call yourself, the Emergency Services
will be able to look up ‘ICE’ in your
telephone and contact someone who
knows you.
Think about what you might need with
you. Consider putting key items into a
grab bag that is small enough to carry,
stored safely and easy to find.

Grab Bag Checklist
• Phone numbers for your friends,

family, GP.
• Medicines.
• Insurance information.
• Glasses.
• Spare keys.
• Radio.
• Torch.
• Note book.
• Toiletries.
• First Aid Kit.
• Batteries.

In an emergency, wait in a safe
place until the Emergency Services
arrive. Have your grab bag at the
ready. Listen to local radio stations
for advice and information - 
Go in, Stay in, Tune in.

| Keeping Safe And Secure At Home16

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFTprojects linked with older people 
and work in close co-operation withand work in close co-operation with
organisations such as Help the Agedorganisations such as Help the Aged

Their advice line is open Their advice line is open 
Monday to Friday Monday to Friday 
from 9.30 until 16.30 from 9.30 until 16.30 
on: 020 7359 8136on: 020 7359 8136

KeysafeKeysafe
Keysafe is a small combination lockKeysafe is a small combination lock
safe which is fitted to the outside ofsafe which is fitted to the outside of
your property. A number is thenyour property. A number is then
programmed into the safe. programmed into the safe. 

If there is a problem or someoneIf there is a problem or someone
official needs to get into your homeofficial needs to get into your home

Before an Emergency Before an Emergency 
Key a friend or family member’s Key a friend or family member’s 
telephone number into your mobile telephone number into your mobile 
phone and call it ‘ICE’. phone and call it ‘ICE’. 
‘ICE’ means ‘In Case of Emergency’‘ICE’ means ‘In Case of Emergency’
In the event that you cannot make aIn the event that you cannot make a
call yourself, the Emergency Servicescall yourself, the Emergency Services
will be able to look up ‘ICE’ in yourwill be able to look up ‘ICE’ in your
telephone and contact someone whotelephone and contact someone who
knows you.knows you.
Think about what you might need withThink about what you might need with
you. Consider putting key items into ayou. Consider putting key items into a
grab bag that is small enough to carry,grab bag that is small enough to carry,
stored safely and easy to find.stored safely and easy to find.

Grab Bag Checklist
• Phone numbers for your friends,

family, GP.
• Medicines.
• Insurance information.
• Glasses.

26



17

Cooking
• NEVER cook with oil/fat if you 

have been drinking alcohol.

If an oil or fat pan catches
fire… 
• If it is safe to do so, turn off 

the heat.
Close the kitchen door. 
Get out of the house and 
call 999.

• NEVER throw water onto the fire.

Also, remember NOT to dry tea
towels, etc. on or near cookers
and do not place anything
metal in a microwave.

Every year the fire service attends over 50,000 household fires in Britain... 
That is 140 fires a day! Sadly, these 50,000 fires resulted in 400 deaths and

3,000 injuries - and not one of those people thought it would happen to them!

Over half of these fires were caused by cooking appliances, which includes 
oil and fat pans.

3 out of 10 deaths are caused by fires from smoking materials, for example,
cigarettes, pipes etc.

Fire... Electricity And Gas  |

Fire...
Electricity And Gas
Fire...
Electricity And Gas

Smoking
• Make sure smoking materials are never 

left to burn unattended.
• Make sure that they are completely 

stubbed out in a proper ashtray before 
leaving the room. A small amount of 
water at the bottom of an ashtray will 
help to extinguish smoking materials.

• Never smoke in bed or in an armchair 
when feeling drowsy or when under the 
influence of alcohol or drugs (prescribed 
or otherwise).

• Never smoke near someone who is 
on oxygen.

Always keep matches and lighters in a
safe place – out of reach of children.DRAFT

DRAFTIf an oil or fat pan catches

• If it is safe to do so, turn off • If it is safe to do so, turn off 

Close the kitchen door. Close the kitchen door. 
Get out of the house and Get out of the house and 
call 999.

• NEVER throw water onto the fire.• NEVER throw water onto the fire.

Also, remember NOT to dry teaAlso, remember NOT to dry tea
towels, etc. on or near cookerstowels, etc. on or near cookers
and do not place anythingand do not place anything
metal in a microwave.metal in a microwave.DRAFT

Every year the fire service attends over 50,000 household fires in Britain... 
That is 140 fires a day! Sadly, these 50,000 fires resulted in 400 deaths and

3,000 injuries - and not one of those people thought it would happen to them!DRAFT

DRAFTSmokingSmoking
• Make sure smoking materials are never • Make sure smoking materials are never 

left to burn unattended.left to burn unattended.
• Make sure that they are completely • Make sure that they are completely 

stubbed out in a proper ashtray before stubbed out in a proper ashtray before 
leaving the room. A small amount of leaving the room. A small amount of 
water at the bottom of an ashtray will water at the bottom of an ashtray will 
help to extinguish smoking materials.help to extinguish smoking materials.

• Never smoke in bed or in an armchair • Never smoke in bed or in an armchair 
when feeling drowsy or when under the when feeling drowsy or when under the 
influence of alcohol or drugs (prescribed influence of alcohol or drugs (prescribed 
or otherwise).or otherwise).

• Never smoke near someone who is 

27



Electric Blankets
Make sure you use your blanket properly. 
Check its condition.

• Switch it off before you get into
bed (unless it is the type that can
be used overnight).

• NEVER use the blanket if it is wet, 
soiled or creased. Never switch it
on to dry it out.

• NEVER use a hot water bottle and 
electric blanket together.

• Replace the blanket if it is over 
10 years old.

Scalds
Scalds are caused by hot water, 
hot oil and steam, especially 
from a kettle. 
One of the major causes of 
scalds is bath water. Cold water 
should be placed in the bath 
first, then hot water added.

• Keep kettles well away 
from the edge of a kitchen 
work-top and check that 
the flex is not left hanging 
down.

• Keep the handles of pots 
and pans turned away from 
the edges of cookers and 
work surfaces at all 
times.

• Take extra care when 
ironing.

Old or damaged electric blankets
cause more than 500 fires a year!

|  Fire... Electricity And Gas18

DRAFT

DRAFTpecially 

One of the major causes of One of the major causes of auses of 
scalds is bath water. Cold water scalds is bath water. Cold water r. Cold water 
should be placed in the bath should be placed in the bath  the bath 
first, then hot water added.first, then hot water added.added.

Keep kettles well away Keep kettles well away away 
from the edge of a kitchen from the edge of a kitchen a kitchen 
work-top and check that work-top and check that eck th
the flex is not left hanging the flex is not left hanging hangin
down.down.

Keep the handles of pots Keep the handles of pots s of pots
and pans turned away from and pans turned away from away 
the edges of cookers and the edges of cookers and ker
work surfaces at all work surfaces at all DRAFT

28



Other electrical things…

• Never repair or rejoin cables.

• Do not run cables under the carpet.

• Keep cables away from the cooker.

• Never use more than one adaptor per 
socket.

• Make sure toasters, microwaves, 
hairdryers and kettles, are plugged into 
their own socket and not used with an 
adaptor.

• When going to bed make sure all TVs 
are switched off properly and not left 
on stand-by. Do not leave washing 
machines and tumble dryers running 
whilst in bed.

• Always unplug phone chargers when 
not in use.

DANGER! Look out for:
• Hot plugs and sockets.
• Fuses that blow for no obvious 

reason.
• Lights flickering.
• Brown scorch marks on sockets or 

plugs.
• Always put a fire guard around an 

open fire.
• Never place clothes on the guard 

to dry.
• Do not hang a mirror above the fire 

place.
• Never put aerosols near a fire or 

heater, they could explode.
• Keep portable heaters away 

from furniture and clothes.
• Always keep portable heaters 

out of bathrooms.

Remember prevention is
always better than cure

19Fire... Electricity And Gas  |

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFTmachines and tumble dryers running 

• Always unplug phone chargers when • Always unplug phone chargers when 

DANGER! Look out for:
• Hot plugs and sockets.
• Fuses that blow for no obvious 

• Lights flickering.
• Brown scorch marks on sockets or 

plugs.
• Always put a fire guard around an 

open fire.
• Never place clothes on the guard 

to dry.
• Do not hang a mirror above the fire 

• Never put aerosols near a fire or 
heater, they could explode.DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT
emember preventio

always better than curalways better than curalways better than curalways better than curealwa s better than curalways better than cur

29



How would you get
out of the house if
there was a fire? 

Make an action plan
TODAY!

If a fire does start…
GET OUT... STAY OUT...
GET THE FIRE SERVICE
OUT BY CALLING 999.

If you do not have a smoke
alarm there will be nothing to
wake you up if there is a fire!
They are cheap and easy to fit.
The Fire Service will be happy
to assist - they provide and
install alarms free of charge,
and provide help and advice
on planning an escape route. 

• Test your smoke alarm every 
week. Change the battery 
and dust the unit every year. 

Where to put it: 
• If your home is on one level 

you should fit the alarm in 
the hallway between the 
living and sleeping areas.

• If your home has more than 
one floor, one alarm should 
be at the bottom of each 
staircase and one on each 
upstairs landing.

• Smoke alarms should be 
fitted onto the ceiling (but 
not too near the kitchen as 
it may go off accidentally).

IF THERE IS A FIRE
DO NOT INVESTIGATE

LEAVE THE HOUSE 
QUICKLY AND CALMLY

CALL THE FIRE SERVICE
AND STAY OUTSIDE

| Fire... Electricity And Gas20

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

How would you get
out of the house if
there was a fire? 

you should fit the alarm in 
the hallway between the 
living and sleeping areas.living and sleeping areas.

• If your home has more than • If your home has more than 
one floor, one alarm should one floor, one alarm should 
be at the bottom of each be at the bottom of each 
staircase and one on each staircase and one on each 
upstairs landing.upstairs landing.

• Smoke alarms should be • Smoke alarms should be 
fitted onto the ceiling (but fitted onto the ceiling (but 
not too near the kitchen as not too near the kitchen as 
it may go off accidentally).it may go off accidentally).

30



Carbon Monoxide
Every year about 30 people die from
carbon monoxide (CO) poisoning
caused by gas appliances and flues
that have not been properly installed or
maintained, whilst many others also
suffer ill health.

When gas does not burn properly, as 
with other fuels such as coal, wood 
or oil, excess CO is produced which 
is poisonous.

You are at risk from CO 
poisoning if:
• Your appliance was poorly installed.
• Your appliance is not working 

properly.
• Your appliance has not been 

checked for safety or maintained 
regularly.

• There is not enough fresh air in the 
room.

• Your chimney or flue gets blocked up.
• You allow non-Gas Safe registered 

engineers to install or maintain your 
appliance(s).

Signs to look out for include:
• Yellow or brown staining around, 

or on appliances.
• Pilot lights that frequently blow out.
• Increased condensation inside 

windows.
• Yellow rather than blue flame 

(apart from flueless fires).

If you think your appliance
is faulty
• Switch off the appliance and do not 

reuse until remedial action has been 
taken.

• Open all doors and windows to 
ventilate the room - do not sleep 
in it.

• Visit your GP urgently.

Symptoms of carbon monoxide
poisoning could be...

• Tiredness • Drowsiness 
• Headaches • Dizziness 
• Chest pains

21Fire... Electricity And Gas  |

DRAFTor oil, excess CO is produced which or oil, excess CO is produced which 

• Your appliance was poorly installed.• Your appliance was poorly installed.
• Your appliance is not working • Your appliance is not working 

• Your appliance has not been • Your appliance has not been 
checked for safety or maintained checked for safety or maintained 
regularly.

• There is not enough fresh air in the • There is not enough fresh air in the 
room.room.

• Your chimney or flue gets blocked up.• Your chimney or flue gets blocked up.
• You allow non-Gas Safe registered • You allow non-Gas Safe registered 

engineers to install or maintain your engineers to install or maintain your 
appliance(s).appliance(s).

Signs to look out for include:Signs to look out for include:
• Yellow or brown staining around, • Yellow or brown staining around, 

or on appliances.or on appliances.

If you think your applianceIf you think your appliance
is faultyis faulty
• Switch off the appliance and do not • Switch off the appliance and do not 

reuse until remedial action has been reuse until remedial action has been 
taken.taken.

• Open all doors and windows to • Open all doors and windows to 
ventilate the room - do not sleep ventilate the room - do not sleep 
in it.in it.

• Visit your GP urgently.• Visit your GP urgently.

DRAFT

DRAFT

31



Prevention is better 
than cure
Get a Gas Safe Register™ registered
engineer to service your gas
appliances regularly and to make any
repairs (see Contact Details at the
back of this handbook).

• Empty ash from solid-fuel 
appliances regularly.

• Ensure the chimney is swept at 
least once a year.

• Make sure any heater using fossil 
fuels has proper ventilation.

• ALWAYS remember to follow the 
instructions when using gas 
cylinders and paraffin heaters.

If you are still worried, you can install 
a carbon monoxide detector alarm
near the sleeping area of your home.
This should comply with British
Standard BS7860 but remember they
are only warning devices.

Gas
If you notice any of these danger
signs, stop using the appliance
immediately:
• Staining, soot or discolouration of 

the appliance or surrounding areas.

• A gas heater or boiler burning with 
a yellow or orange flame rather 
than its normal blue flame.

Gas does smell but is only one source 
of carbon monoxide. 

If you smell gas…
• Turn off the gas supply at the 

meter.

• Do not use matches or smoke.

• Do not turn electrical switches on 
or off.

• Open doors and windows.

• Check the appliance to see if the 
gas has been left switched on.

• If you think you have a gas leak 
call 0800 111 999 (24hrs a day).

| Fire... Electricity And Gas22

ALWAYS remember to follow the instructions when using gas 
cylinders and paraffin heaters

DRAFT

DRAFTIf you are still worried, you can install If you are still worried, you can install 
a carbon monoxide detector alarm
near the sleeping area of your home.near the sleeping area of your home.
This should comply with BritishThis should comply with British
Standard BS7860 but remember theyStandard BS7860 but remember they
are only warning devices.are only warning devices.

• A gas heater or boiler burning with • A gas heater or boiler burning with 
a yellow or orange flame rather a yellow or orange flame rather 
than its normal blue flame.than its normal blue flame.

Gas does smell but is only one source Gas does smell but is only one source 
of carbon monoxide. of carbon monoxide. 

If you smell gas…If you smell gas…
• Turn off the gas supply at the • Turn off the gas supply at the 

meter.meter.

• Do not use matches or smoke.• Do not use matches or smoke.

• Do not turn electrical switches on • Do not turn electrical switches on 
or off.or off.

• Open doors and windows.• Open doors and windows.

• Check the appliance to see if the • Check the appliance to see if the 
gas has been left switched on.gas has been left switched on.

• If you think you have a gas leak • If you think you have a gas leak 
call call 0800 111 999

32



Energy Efficiency

23Energy Efficiency  |

Michael Cairney aged 84
“I heard that I should be trying to keep
my house at 21°C (70°F)! I couldn’t
afford that so I tried to at least keep my
living room warm. I struggled to do that
but now, I can’t believe it! It is like I
moved to the Bahamas! My rooms are
much warmer and my bills are
cheaper!” 
When asked how he has done it
he told our reporter that he
followed some advice:
• Close your curtains as it gets dark - 

stop heat escaping through 
windows. 

• Stop draughts and heat escaping 
through floorboards and skirting 
boards by filling gaps with newspaper,
beading or mastic sealant.

• Make sure your loft is properly 
insulated - the recommended depth 
is 270mm (10

1/2 inches).
• An insulating jacket for hot water 

tanks only costs a few pounds. One 
that is at least 75mm (3”) thick could 
save £10-£15 a year. Set the water 

thermostat at 60°C/140°F for bathing 
and washing, it does not need to be 
hotter.

• Put the plug in when you run hot 
water and get a dripping tap fixed - 
a day’s ‘dripping’ is enough to run 
a bath.

• Check your heating system is 
working properly and serviced at 
least once a year (your supplier may 
offer free safety checks).

• Make sure you know how to set the 
heating controls on your boiler. In 
very cold weather set the heating to 
come on earlier, rather than turning 
the thermostat up higher.

• Energy saving light bulbs can be a 
bit more expensive than ‘ordinary’ 
ones but can last up to 12 times 
longer.

• Turn off lights, television and any 
other electrical items when you do 
not need them. 

• Have cavity wall insulation fitted if 
you can, this could save you  
between £100 and £120 a year. 

DRAFT

DRAFT“I heard that I should be trying to keep
my house at 21°C (70°F)! I couldn’t
afford that so I tried to at least keep my
living room warm. I struggled to do that

moved to the Bahamas! My rooms are
much warmer and my bills are

When asked how he has done it
he told our reporter that he
followed some advice:
• Close your curtains as it gets dark - 

stop heat escaping through 
windows. 

• Stop draughts and heat escaping 
through floorboards and skirting 
boards by filling gaps with newspaper,
beading or mastic sealant.

• Make sure your loft is properly 
insulated - the recommended depth 

thermostat at 60°C/140°F for bathing thermostat at 60°C/140°F for bathing thermostat at 60°C/140°F for bathing 
and washing, it does not need to be 
hotter.

• Put the plug in when you run hot 
water and get a dripping tap fixed - 
a day’s ‘dripping’ is enough to run 
a bath.

• Check your heating system is 
working properly and serviced at 
least once a year (your supplier may 
offer free safety checks).

• Make sure you know how to set the 

33



You might want to think about
changing your gas or electricity
supplier. You would have the same
meters, the same pipes and cables. 

Comparing prices can feel very
complicated and confusing as
companies charge in different ways. 

‘Consumer Direct’ are independent
and can help you with this (see the
contacts list at the back of this
handbook). 

What you need to find out is how 
much you pay for your gas and
electricity each year - look at your 
last four quarterly bills. 

You should be able to spread your
fuel costs over the full year, rather
than find your bills much higher in
winter. 

Call your supplier to ask about this
and other savings schemes.

Energy Efficiency Advice Centres
provide free, impartial, expert advice to
help you cut the amount of energy you
use in your home.

Make your home warmer and healthier! 
If you own your home or rent from a
private landlord, you could receive a
Warm Front grant of up to £2,700 to
use towards heating and insulation
measures. Call 0800 316 2805.

If you fall behind with bills
Let the company know. Gas and
electricity companies have a
commitment not to disconnect supply
to all-pensioner households in the
winter. Make sure they know that you
are a pensioner.

| Energy Efficiency24

DRAFT

DRAFT, rather, rather
than find your bills much higher inthan find your bills much higher in

Make your home warmer and healthier! Make your home warmer and healthier! 
If you own your home or rent from aIf you own your home or rent from a
private landlord, you could receive aprivate landlord, you could receive a

grant of up to £2,700 togrant of up to £2,700 to
use towards heating and insulationuse towards heating and insulation
measures. measures. Call 0800 316 2805.Call 0800 316 2805.

If you fall behind with billsIf you fall behind with bills
Let the company know. Gas andLet the company know. Gas and
electricity companies have aelectricity companies have a
commitment not to disconnect supplycommitment not to disconnect supply
to all-pensioner households in theto all-pensioner households in the
winter. Make sure they know that youwinter. Make sure they know that you
are a pensioner.are a pensioner.

34



There are several agencies and
people to ask, who can help you
check your benefits.

Benefits Enquiry Line
This is an enquiry line provided by
the Department for Work and
Pensions. Staff can offer advice and
information about benefits for those
who are sick or disabled and carers.
They may also be able to offer help
completing forms.

Citizens Advice Bureau
The Citizens Advice service helps
people resolve their legal, money
and other problems by providing free
information and advice from nearly
3,400 locations.

Pension Service
The local Pension Service provides
information for individuals about
pensions and other pensioner
benefits in the UK, whether you are
planning for the future, are about to

retire or have already retired.
Benefits Officers can visit you at
home to provide advice and to offer
help to complete claims forms.

Age UK
Age UK work locally, regionally and
nationally in partnership with other
public, voluntary, charity and
community sector organisations. 

They promote and deliver a better
quality of life for all older people, and
have advisors who can provide
information on benefits and other
matters.

25Benefits And Money Worries  |

Benefits And
Money Worries
Benefits And
Money Worries

If in doubt contact your 
Local Council.

Please see the Contact Details
section at the back of this

handbook for local numbers 
of the above agencies.

people to ask, who can help youpeople to ask, who can help you

Benefits Enquiry Line
This is an enquiry line provided by
the Department for Work andthe Department for Work and
Pensions. Staff can offer advice andPensions. Staff can offer advice and
information about benefits for thoseinformation about benefits for those
who are sick or disabled and carers.who are sick or disabled and carers.
They may also be able to offer helpThey may also be able to offer help
completing forms.completing forms.

Citizens Advice BureauCitizens Advice Bureau
The Citizens Advice service helpsThe Citizens Advice service helps
people resolve their legal, moneypeople resolve their legal, money
and other problems by providing freeand other problems by providing free
information and advice from nearlyinformation and advice from nearly
3,400 locations.3,400 locations.

Pension ServicePension Service
The local Pension Service providesThe local Pension Service provides

retire or have already retired.retire or have already retired.
Benefits Officers can visit you atBenefits Officers can visit you at
home to provide advice and to offerhome to provide advice and to offer
help to complete claims forms.help to complete claims forms.

Age UKAge UK
Age UK work locally, regionally andAge UK work locally, regionally and
nationally in partnership with othernationally in partnership with other
public, voluntary, charity andpublic, voluntary, charity and
community sector organisations. community sector organisations. 

They promote and deliver a betterThey promote and deliver a better
quality of life for all older people, andquality of life for all older people, and

DRAFT

35



If you have money worries, for
example, dealing with people you
owe money to, including
considering borrowing from a
doorstep lender, or if you feel you
are constantly ‘robbing Peter to
pay Paul’, there are people you
can contact for free, impartial and
confidential advice. Very often
there are solutions to what might
seem to be impossible situations.

No need to face money
worries on your own
Trying to cope with money worries
alone can be very stressful. Bills, debts
and just trying to get by can seem
impossible. And ignoring money
problems usually makes things worse. 

Community Legal Advice
(CLA)
You may also get advice from CLA.
They may be able to advise on a range
of issues such as debt, welfare
benefits and housing. 

Housing and Council Tax
Benefit
Even if you do not get any other
benefits you may still be able to get
help towards rent and Council Tax. 
Contact your local district or borough
council to ask about what help you
may be able to get. 

Contact details can be found at the
back of this handbook. Or you can find
the number in the local telephone
directory.

Credit Union
Credit Unions are mutual financial 
organisations which are owned and run
by their members for their members.
Credit Unions are regulated by the
Financial Services Authority (FSA), and
money saved in one is protected on
the same basis as it would be if it was
held in a bank or building society.
Many credit unions offer a range of
services including a current account,
benefits direct, ISAs and Child Trust
Funds. A credit union may suit those
who do not want a bank account, but
want the flexibility to save when they
can. Once a record as a reliable saver
has been established they will also
responsibly lend money. More
information is available from the
Financial Services Authority and
Consumer Direct. Contact details can
be found at the back of this handbook.

National Debtline
Contact - 0808 808 4000
This is a national telephone helpline for
people with debt problems in England,
Wales and Scotland. The service is
free, confidential and independent,
with any advice backed up with written
self-help materials. It may also be
possible to assist you in setting up a
free Debt Management Plan.

Age UK
See details on previous page.

Citizens Advice Bureau
See details on previous page.

| Benefits And Money Worries26

Please see the Contact Details section at the back of this handbook 
for local numbers of the above agencies

DRAFTproblems usually makes things worse. problems usually makes things worse. 

Community Legal AdviceCommunity Legal Advice

You may also get advice from CLA.You may also get advice from CLA.
They may be able to advise on a rangeThey may be able to advise on a range
of issues such as debt, welfareof issues such as debt, welfare
benefits and housing. benefits and housing. 

Housing and Council TaxHousing and Council Tax
BenefitBenefit
Even if you do not get any otherEven if you do not get any other
benefits you may still be able to getbenefits you may still be able to get
help towards rent and Council Tax. help towards rent and Council Tax. 
Contact your local district or boroughContact your local district or borough
council to ask about what help youcouncil to ask about what help you
may be able to get. may be able to get. 

Contact details can be found at theContact details can be found at the
back of this handbook. Or you can findback of this handbook. Or you can find

the same basis as it would be if it wasthe same basis as it would be if it was
held in a bank or building society.held in a bank or building society.
Many credit unions offer a range ofMany credit unions offer a range of
services including a current account,services including a current account,
benefits direct, ISAs and Child Trustbenefits direct, ISAs and Child Trust
Funds. A credit union may suit thoseFunds. A credit union may suit those
who do not want a bank account, butwho do not want a bank account, but
want the flexibility to save when theywant the flexibility to save when they
can. Once a record as a reliable savercan. Once a record as a reliable saver
has been established they will alsohas been established they will also
responsibly lend money. Moreresponsibly lend money. More
information is available from theinformation is available from the
Financial Services Authority andFinancial Services Authority and
Consumer Direct. Contact details canConsumer Direct. Contact details can
be found at the back of this handbook.be found at the back of this handbook.

National DebtlineNational Debtline
Contact - 0808 808 4000Contact - 0808 808 4000
This is a national telephone helpline forThis is a national telephone helpline for
people with debt problems in England,people with debt problems in England,
Wales and Scotland. The service isWales and Scotland. The service is

36



27Nuisance Neighbours  |

‘Neighbour Nuisance’ includes a
wide variety of problems including:

• Rubbish dumped in the street.

• Dogs fouling.

• Verbal abuse.

• Ball games played against your 
living room wall.

• Drunken behaviour.

• Graffiti.

• Many complaints are about noise.

This problem is not a new one and
cases were being reported back in the
19th Century.
• Arguments next door, midnight DIY, 

parties, burglar alarms that will not 
switch off… Just because it is 
common, it does not mean that 
you have to put up with it.

• The reassuring fact is that the large 
majority of situations are sorted out 
by communicating directly with the 
person responsible.

Nuisance
Neighbours
Nuisance
Neighbours

DRAFT

DRAFT• Rubbish dumped in the street.• Rubbish dumped in the street.

• Ball games played against your • Ball games played against your 
living room wall.living room wall.

• Drunken behaviour.• Drunken behaviour.

• Many complaints are about noise.• Many complaints are about noise.

This problem is not a new one andThis problem is not a new one and
cases were being reported back in thecases were being reported back in the
19th Century.19th Century.
• Arguments next door, midnight DIY, • Arguments next door, midnight DIY, 

parties, burglar alarms that will not parties, burglar alarms that will not 
switch off… Just because it is switch off… Just because it is 
common, it does not mean that common, it does not mean that 
you have to put up with it.you have to put up with it.

• The reassuring fact is that the large • The reassuring fact is that the large 
majority of situations are sorted out majority of situations are sorted out 
by communicating directly with the by communicating directly with the 
person responsible.person responsible.

DRAFT

37



What you can do:

• If possible, check who is 
responsible for the behaviour 
or disturbance. If you are at all 
unsure it would be advisable 
to approach the person, or 
people, cautiously and with 
respect.

• It may be better to write a 
letter if it seems likely that 
one or both parties will lose 
their temper or be unable to 
discuss the issue calmly.

• If other people are 
experiencing the same 
problem they may be 
interested in making a joint 
approach either by letter or 
in person. 

• You can also approach the 
neighbour’s landlord to 
discuss the problem. This 
might be a housing welfare 
officer (if owned or run by a 
housing association), the 
local Council or a private 
landlord.

• Keeping a record sheet
or diary with details of when 
the noise or disturbance 
occurs can be a valuable 
record, which can be 
referred back to. 

| Nuisance Neighbours28

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFTjoint 
either by letter or 

• You can also approach the • You can also approach the 
neighbour’s landlordneighbour’s landlord to to 
discuss the problem. This discuss the problem. This 
might be a housing welfare might be a housing welfare 
officer (if owned or run by a officer (if owned or run by a 
housing association), the housing association), the 
local Council or a private local Council or a private 
landlord.landlord.

Keeping a record sheetKeeping a record sheet
or diary with details of when or diary with details of when 
the noise or disturbance the noise or disturbance 
occurs can be a valuable occurs can be a valuable 
record, which can be record, which can be 

38



Contact the Police on 999 ONLY if you feel that you are in 
IMMEDIATE DANGER. 

If you are experiencing on-going harassment or feel that you 
or your property are at risk then call you local police 

on their non-emergency number.

29Nuisance Neighbours  |

• If you do not feel comfortable or 
able to approach the person 
responsible, for whatever 
reason, you might want to see if 
an independent mediator 
could listen to both your views 
and to help you find a solution. 

• Some issues may relate to 
information recorded in official 
documents. If possible, find out 
what the legal position is. If you 
are unsure, you can contact an 
experienced adviser at the 
Citizen’s Advice Bureau (listed in 
your phone book).

• If a direct approach to the 
individual, group or landlord is 
not possible or unsuccessful, 
then you could either contact 
your Anti-Social Behaviour 
Co-ordinator (through the local 
Council) or alternatively contact 
your Neighbourhood Specialist 
Officer.

• In situations that relate to your 
property such as overhanging 
tree branches causing a danger, 
then contact your local 
Council. They will direct you to 
the righ tdepartment for your 
particular circumstances.DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

Contact the Police on 999 ONLY if you feel that you are in DRAFT

DRAFTindividual, group or landlord is individual, group or landlord is 
not possible or unsuccessful, not possible or unsuccessful, 
then you could either contact 
your Anti-Social Behaviour your Anti-Social Behaviour 
Co-ordinator (through the local Co-ordinator (through the local 
Council) or alternatively contact Council) or alternatively contact 
your Neighbourhood Specialist your Neighbourhood Specialist 

• In situations that relate to your • In situations that relate to your 
property such as overhanging property such as overhanging 
tree branches causing a danger, tree branches causing a danger, 
then contact your then contact your local local 
CouncilCouncil. They will direct you to . They will direct you to 
the righ tdepartment for your the righ tdepartment for your 
particular circumstances.particular circumstances.

39



| Getting Out, Travel And Holidays30

Getting out and about is good for your mind, your body, your spirit and confidence.
It provides stimulus that keeps you healthy, happy and engaged with life.

Here are some ideas that may make it easier for you to get out…

WALKING is free and provides excellent
exercise! 

TRAVELLING BY SCOOTER OR BUGGY
can offer greater freedom when walking has
become more difficult. Assist UK can offer help
on which vehicle would best suit your needs.
The Highway Code for Electric Scooters and
Wheelchair Users, available from the British
Healthcare Trades Association is a useful guide.

CATCHING THE BUS is free to every local
resident aged 60 or over when you apply for
your free bus pass. The operational hours for
most of England is between 9.30am and 11pm
weekdays and all day at the weekends. An
English bus pass is not currently valid in Wales
or Scotland however there are some
exceptions travelling from Cheshire into Wales.
You should check with your local council for
the latest details and how to use and obtain
your bus pass.

Getting Out,
Travel And Holidays
Getting Out,
Travel And Holidays

DRAFT

DRAFTmind, your body, your spirit and confidence.mind, your body, your spirit and confidence.
It provides stimulus that keeps you healthy, happy and engaged with life.It provides stimulus that keeps you healthy, happy and engaged with life.

Here are some ideas that may make it easier for you to get out…Here are some ideas that may make it easier for you to get out…

WALKINGWALKING is free and provides excellentis free and provides excellent
exercise! exercise! 

TRAVELLING BY SCOOTER OR BUGGYTRAVELLING BY SCOOTER OR BUGGY
can offer greater freedom when walking hascan offer greater freedom when walking has
become more difficult. Assist UK can offer helpbecome more difficult. Assist UK can offer help
on which vehicle would best suit your needs.on which vehicle would best suit your needs.
The Highway Code for Electric Scooters andThe Highway Code for Electric Scooters and
Wheelchair Users, available from the BritishWheelchair Users, available from the British
Healthcare Trades Association is a useful guide.Healthcare Trades Association is a useful guide.

CATCHING THE BUSCATCHING THE BUSDRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

40



TRAIN TRAVEL is made easier by getting
help from train companies. Call the National
Rail Enquiry Service (see the contacts list at
the back of this handbook) for information
and details about discounts. Apply for a
Senior Rail Card to cut costs.

TAKING A COACH is often available at a
discount rate. National Express offers this
and you can find out more by contacting
one of their agents (often your local travel
agent). Many coach companies can provide
assistance so check when you make your
booking.

TRAVELLING BY CAR can be the most
convenient way to travel. There are no age
restrictions to driving but by law you must
notify the Driver Vehicle Licence Agency 
(0870 240 0009) if you develop a disability
or medical condition that might affect your
driving. You must renew your licence at the
age of 70 and every three years after that.
Contact your local Council to apply for a
Blue Badge.

TRAVELLING BY AIR OR SEA can be a
great adventure, stimulating experience or
relaxing break. Some airlines and ferry
companies offer discounts, although the age
barrier varies - talk directly to the company
you are thinking of booking with or to your
travel agent. 

There are also companies that specialise in
holidays for those who are 50+, such as
SAGA or Age UK as well as special-interest
holidays such as bridge and walking in Italy.
You can find out about companies like these
through your local travel agent or the
internet.

31Getting Out, Travel And Holidays  |

DRAFT
is often available at ais often available at a

discount rate. National Express offers thisdiscount rate. National Express offers this
and you can find out more by contactingand you can find out more by contacting
one of their agents (often your local travelone of their agents (often your local travel
agent). Many coach companies can provideagent). Many coach companies can provide

checkcheck when you make yourwhen you make your

TRAVELLING BY CARTRAVELLING BY CAR can be the mostcan be the most
convenient way to travel. There are no ageconvenient way to travel. There are no age
restrictions to driving but by law you mustrestrictions to driving but by law you must
notify the Driver Vehicle Licence Agency notify the Driver Vehicle Licence Agency 
(0870 240 0009) if you develop a disability(0870 240 0009) if you develop a disability
or medical condition that might affect youror medical condition that might affect your
driving. You must renew your licence at thedriving. You must renew your licence at the
age of 70 and every three years after that.age of 70 and every three years after that.
Contact your local Council to apply for aContact your local Council to apply for a
Blue Badge.Blue Badge.

TRAVELLING BY AIR OR SEATRAVELLING BY AIR OR SEA
great adventure, stimulating experience orgreat adventure, stimulating experience or
relaxing break. Some airlines and ferryrelaxing break. Some airlines and ferry
companies offer discounts, although the agecompanies offer discounts, although the age
barrier varies - talk directly to the companybarrier varies - talk directly to the company
you are thinking of booking with or to yourDRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

41



Most burglaries happen when a house or flat is empty so make it
look like you are at home when you are not!

When you are away:
• Do not leave your curtains closed 

during the daytime - you could ask 
a neighbour to open and close 
them for you.

• Use timer switches to turn on some
lights and a radio when it gets dark 
(available at DIY shops).

• Cancel any milk or newspaper 
deliveries.

• Keep all valuables such as 
televisions and computers out of 
sight.

• Do not put your home address on 
luggage labels until you are making 
the return journey.

• Lock all windows and doors, 
remove the keys and put them 
in a safe place, out of sight. 

• Enjoy yourself!

When you are out and about:

• Keep to main roads that are busy 
and well lit. 

• Before you go out, plan your route 
and tell someone where you are 
going and when you will be back. 

• If you get lost, ask for directions in a 
shop.

• Spread your valuables around your 
body if possible, for example, your 
house keys in your trouser pocket 
and your money in your jacket.

• Consider buying a personal attack 
alarm (available from DIY stores).

• If you use a wheelchair, keep your 
things beside you rather than at the 
back of the chair.

• Only carry the valuables and money 
you need, keep them secure and 
out of sight. 

• Place your handbag strap across 
your body.

• Sit near other people or where the 
driver can see you if you are on a 
bus or tram.

• Move if someone makes you feel 
uncomfortable.

• Do not risk injuring yourself - 
if someone tries to take something 
from you, it may be better to give 
them what they want and then 
contact the Police.

• Shouting ‘fire’ rather than ‘help’ can 
get more reaction.

• Keep your car in good condition and 
when you are driving, make sure 
your doors and windows are locked 
and your valuables out of sight.

• Keep bags and any valuables out of 
sight.

• Park in an area that is well-lit and 
overlooked. If you can, remove all 
your valuables.

• Do not offer lifts to (or accept lifts 
from) people you do not know.

• Only use approved taxi firms, book 
in advance and always sit in the 
back seat.

| Getting Out, Travel And Holidays32

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT
Most burglaries happen when a house or flat is empty so make it

look like you are at home when you are not!

When you are away:
• Do not leave your curtains closed 

during the daytime - you could ask 
a neighbour to open and close 
them for you.

• Use timer switches to turn on some

things beside you rather than at the 

• Only carry the valuables and money • Only carry the valuables and money 
you need, keep them secure and you need, keep them secure and 

• Place your handbag strap across • Place your handbag strap across 

• Sit near other people or where the • Sit near other people or where the 
driver can see you if you are on a driver can see you if you are on a 
bus or tram.

them what they want and then them what they want and then 
contact the Police.contact the Police.

• Shouting ‘fire’ rather than ‘help’ can • Shouting ‘fire’ rather than ‘help’ can 
get more reaction.get more reaction.

• Keep your car in good condition and • Keep your car in good condition and 
when you are driving, make sure when you are driving, make sure 
your doors and windows are locked your doors and windows are locked 
and your valuables out of sight.and your valuables out of sight.

• Keep bags and any valuables out of • Keep bags and any valuables out of 
sight.sight.

• Park in an area that is well-lit and • Park in an area that is well-lit and 
overlooked. If you can, remove all overlooked. If you can, remove all 
your valuables.your valuables.

• Do not offer lifts to (or accept lifts • Do not offer lifts to (or accept lifts 
from) people you do not know.from) people you do not know.

• Only use approved taxi firms, book • Only use approved taxi firms, book 
in advance and always sit in the in advance and always sit in the 
back seat.back seat.

42



Safe In Your Garden  | 33

Here are a few tips to help
you keep active in and
with your garden:
• Keep paths free of leaves and moss.

• Make your paths wide enough to 
use with a stick or walking frame.

• Take care with overhanging trees 
and unprotected canes.

• Put hanging baskets where they 
are easy to reach. 

• Raised beds are easier to plant 
and weed. 

• Use ground cover plants to cut 
down on weeding.

• Allow yourself sufficient time to 
complete a task. Rushing 
can lead to mistakes and injuries.

• Do not try to carry too much at a 
time - use a light watering can.

• You should have a tetanus injection 
every ten years. 

• Stop before you get too tired - 
do not “do that extra little bit”.

Safe In Your GardenSafe In Your Garden

DRAFT

DRAFTHere are a few tips to help

• Keep paths free of leaves and moss.• Keep paths free of leaves and moss.

• Make your paths wide enough to 
use with a stick or walking frame.use with a stick or walking frame.

• Take care with overhanging trees • Take care with overhanging trees 
and unprotected canes.and unprotected canes.

• Put hanging baskets where they • Put hanging baskets where they 
are easy to reach. are easy to reach. 

• Raised beds are easier to plant • Raised beds are easier to plant 
and weed. and weed. 

• Use ground cover plants to cut • Use ground cover plants to cut 
down on weeding.down on weeding.

• Allow yourself sufficient time to • Allow yourself sufficient time to 
complete a task. Rushing complete a task. Rushing 
can lead to mistakes and injuries.can lead to mistakes and injuries.

• Do not try to carry too much at a • Do not try to carry too much at a 
time - use a light watering can.time - use a light watering can.DRAFT

43



Here are some ideas:

• Learn to play a new instrument.

• Research your family tree or local history.

• Try gardening or join a gardening group.

• Many museums and art galleries are 
now free.

• Writers/artists and music appreciation 
groups.

• Annual essay and poetry competitions.

• Try a new sport or gentle exercise.

• Volunteer - there are many different 
opportunities available.

• Join a walking group.

• Start swimming, cheaper for people 
aged 60+.

34

Growing older brings a lot
of changes to a person’s
life. Suddenly they may feel
that they are without a
routine.

Relationships also change,
hopefully for the better with
more time to spend
together but this does not
always just happen - it
takes effort and good
communication. 

In retirement people can
find frustration, social
isolation and loneliness.

One of the keys to enjoying
a happy healthy life is to
keep active and that
includes your brain.

| Keeping Healthy And Active

You can find out about activities and groups in many different places:
libraries, volunteer bureaux, Age UK, town/village halls, local papers,
adult or community colleges, the phone books, Tourist Information
Centres, Internet…

Keeping Healthy
And Active
Keeping Healthy
And Active

DRAFT

DRAFTHere are some ideas:

• Learn to play a new instrument.

• Research your family tree or local history.

• Try gardening or join a gardening group.

• Many museums and art galleries are 
now free.

• Writers/artists and music appreciation 
groups.

• Annual essay and poetry competitions.

• Try a new sport or gentle exercise.

• Volunteer - there are many different DRAFT

DRAFTRelationships also change,Relationships also change,
hopefully for the better withhopefully for the better with
more time to spendmore time to spend
together but this does nottogether but this does not
always just happen - italways just happen - it
takes effort and goodtakes effort and good
communication. communication. 

In retirement people canIn retirement people can
find frustration, socialfind frustration, social
isolation and loneliness.isolation and loneliness.

One of the keys to enjoyingOne of the keys to enjoying
a happy healthy life is toa happy healthy life is to
keep active and thatkeep active and that
includes your brain.includes your brain.DRAFT

44



Everyone has heard about the
dangers of smoking but what
about the benefits of stopping? 
Check your knowledge with the
statements below:

1. Your blood oxygen levels increase 
to normal and your chance of having
a heart attack starts to fall after 

a) eight hours. 
b) twelve hours. 
c) two days.

2. Your body is nicotine-free and your 
senses of taste and smell begin to 
improve after 

a) 24 hours. 
b) 48 hours. 
c) a week. 

3. Your lung efficiency has increased by
5-10% so wheezing, coughing and
shortness of breath improve after

a) a month.
b) 3-9 months. 
c) 12–18 months.

4. Your risk of having a heart attack is 
half that of a smoker after 

a) 5 years. 
b) 10 years. 
c) 12 years.

What about keeping your
body ‘active’?
• Get your doctor to check your 

hearing and blood pressure every 
year - spotting a problem early 
makes it much easier to treat.

• People aged 60+ can have a free 
eyesight check, which you should 
have every two years.

• Women should check their breasts 
for lumps every month and have a 
free breast screening ‘mammogram’
every three years (available for all 
women aged 50-70).

• Men should look out for possible
symptoms of prostate problems such
as difficulty or pain when urinating
or the need to urinate more frequently.

Consider the following...
Stop Smoking and Drinking
IT IS NEVER TOO LATE TO QUIT

NHS Smoking Helpline: 
0800 022 4332

The Department of Health suggests
that women should have no more
than 2 or 3 units of alcohol a day,
and men no more than 3 or 4 units
of alcohol a day.
(1 unit = half a pint, small glass of
wine or single pub measure of spirits). 

Many people who drink a damaging
amount do not actually get drunk
often. Being able to ‘handle’ it does
not mean that your body can! 
The National Alcohol Helpline: 
0800 917 8282 offers free support
and advice.

Keeping Healthy And Active  | 35

Answers: 1a, 2b, 3b, 4a.

DRAFT
to normal and your chance of havingto normal and your chance of having
a heart attack starts to fall after a heart attack starts to fall after 

eight hours. eight hours. 
twelve hours. twelve hours. 

c)c) two days.two days.

Your body is nicotine-free and your Your body is nicotine-free and your 
senses of taste and smell begin to senses of taste and smell begin to 
improve after improve after 

a) 24 hours. 24 hours. 
b)b) 48 hours. 48 hours. 
c)c) a week. a week. 

3.3. Your lung efficiency has increased byYour lung efficiency has increased by
5-10% so wheezing, coughing and5-10% so wheezing, coughing and
shortness of breath improve aftershortness of breath improve after

a)a) a month.a month.
b)b) 3-9 months. 3-9 months. 
c)

4.4. Your risk of having a heart attack is Your risk of having a heart attack is 
half that of a smoker after half that of a smoker after 

DRAFTsymptoms of prostate problems such
as difficulty or pain when urinatingas difficulty or pain when urinating
or the need to urinate more frequently.or the need to urinate more frequently.

Consider the following...Consider the following...
Stop Smoking and DrinkingStop Smoking and Drinking
IT IS NEVER TOO LATE TO QUITIT IS NEVER TOO LATE TO QUIT

NHS Smoking Helpline: NHS Smoking Helpline: 
0800 022 43320800 022 4332

The Department of Health suggestsThe Department of Health suggests
that women should have no morethat women should have no more
than 2 or 3 units of alcohol a day,than 2 or 3 units of alcohol a day,
and men no more than 3 or 4 unitsand men no more than 3 or 4 units
of alcohol a day.of alcohol a day.
(1 unit = half a pint, small glass of(1 unit = half a pint, small glass of
wine or single pub measure of spirits). wine or single pub measure of spirits). 

Many people who drink a damagingMany people who drink a damaging
amount do not actually get drunkamount do not actually get drunkDRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

45



Look after your teeth
• Adults lose more teeth from 

advanced gum disease than tooth 
decay, so keep brushing your teeth 
regularly. 

• If you wear dentures, it is important 
to clean your gums, tongue and 
palate with a soft bristled brush 
every day. 

• Everyone, whether you have your 
own teeth, full or partial dentures, 
should have regular check-ups with 
the dentist. 

• Dentures usually need to be 
replaced every five years as the 
shape of your mouth continues to 
change. 

• Check your toothbrush.

• A healthy mouth allows you to 
choose a variety of foods and enjoy 
healthy eating. 

• Cutting down on sugary things can 
also help you maintain a healthy 
weight.

Flu Jab
The ‘Flu Jab’ is free and recommended
by the Department of Health for
everyone over 65, as well as everyone
with a chronic heart or chest
complaint, kidney disease, asthma,
diabetes or low immune system. Also
have the jab if you are a carer for
someone whose health would be at
risk if you caught the flu. If you have
any concerns or questions, talk to your
doctor or NHS Direct (number at the
back of this handbook).

Different flu viruses are around each
year, so it is important you get your ‘flu
jab’ each year. Last year’s jab may not
protect you this year. The ‘flu jab’
CANNOT give you the flu.

36 | Keeping Healthy And Active

DRAFT• A healthy mouth allows you to 
choose a variety of foods and enjoy choose a variety of foods and enjoy 

• Cutting down on sugary things can • Cutting down on sugary things can 
also help you maintain a healthy also help you maintain a healthy 

Flu JabFlu Jab
The ‘Flu Jab’ is free and recommendedThe ‘Flu Jab’ is free and recommended
by the Department of Health forby the Department of Health for
everyone over 65, as well as everyoneeveryone over 65, as well as everyone
with a chronic heart or chestwith a chronic heart or chest

DRAFT

DRAFT

46



Knowing about the medicines that YOU are putting in YOUR body, can mean
the difference between good and poor health.

Pills, pills and more pills… managing what you take, and when, can feel very
complicated. PLEASE read the following tips below. If there is just one tip that
is new then it will be worth the five minutes!

• Tell your doctor about all the
medication that you are taking.

• Let your doctor know about 
your past reactions to certain 
medicines.

• Tell the pharmacist if you are 
taking any prescribed medicines 
before buying others (including 
vitamins) over the counter.

• Ask your doctor or 
pharmacist:
What is the medicine for? 
How long should I take it for? 
When should I take it? Should I 
take it before, after or with food?
Do the tablets have to be taken 
whole or can I crush them? 

Can I drink alcohol while on these?
What are the side effects and what 
do I do if I have them?

• Ask the pharmacist to mark each 
container with all the instructions 
and check if anything is different 
to what the doctor told you.

• If your pills look different, for 
example, shape, size or colour, 
check carefully that the 
medication dose strength in 
milligrams (‘mg’) or micrograms 
(‘mcg’) and dose frequency, is the 
same as you have taken before. 

Remember if you are worried you 
can always contact your doctor or 
NHS Direct on 0845 4647.

Medication  |

MedicationMedication

37

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFTKnowing about the medicines that YOU are putting in YOUR body, can meanKnowing about the medicines that YOU are putting in YOUR body, can mean
the difference between good and poor health.the difference between good and poor health.

Pills, pills and more pills… managing what you take, and when, can feel veryPills, pills and more pills… managing what you take, and when, can feel very
read the following tips below. If there is just one tip thatread the following tips below. If there is just one tip that

is new then it will be worth the five minutes!is new then it will be worth the five minutes!

• Tell your doctor about all the
medication that you are taking.

• Let your doctor know about 
your past reactions to certain 
medicines.

• Tell the pharmacist if you are 
taking any prescribed medicines 
before buying others (including 
vitamins) over the counter.

Ask your doctor or 
pharmacist:
What is the medicine for? 
How long should I take it for? 

Can I drink alcohol while on these?
What are the side effects and what 
do I do if I have them?

• Ask the pharmacist to mark each 
container with all the instructions 

DRAFT

47



• Check storage instructions AND 
follow them!

• Always keep medicines in their 
original containers. 

• If you are struggling to manage 
your medicines, ask your usual 
community pharmacist for help. 

• Make sure you take enough 
medication away with you on 
holiday.

• Never take other people’s 
medicine.

• Carry a list of all your medication 
with you, in a wallet or your diary, 
in case you need urgent treatment 
or are away on holiday.

• Do not stop taking medication 
even if the symptoms have 
disappeared - always talk 
with your doctor first. If you 
do not complete the course 
of tablets, you may develop 
a new infection, which is 
resistant to the medication 
already taken.

• Give old, expired or unwanted 
medication back to the 
pharmacist. Do not flush 
themdown the sink/toilet or 
put them in the dustbin.

38 | Medication

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT
a new infection, which is 
resistant to the medication 
already taken.

• Give old, expired or unwanted 
medication back to the 
pharmacist. Do not flush 
themdown the sink/toilet or 
put them in the dustbin.

DRAFT

48



Food  | 39

Most people have heard of ‘5-a-day’,
encouraging us all to eat five portions
of fruit and vegetables every day
(which can include dried fruit, 
tinned/frozen products and long-life
fruit juice). 

Other healthy foods include:

• Wholemeal bread, potatoes, rice, 
pasta and cereals.

• Fish, meat, beans and pulses 
such as lentils.

• Milk and dairy products.

It is important to drink at least
6 to 8 cups of liquid every day, to
help prevent dehydration. Try tea,
coffee, water, fruit juices and fruit
squash.

Many people do not like cooking, or
find it increasingly difficult as they get
older, but aim to have at least one hot
meal a day (particularly in the winter)
and to have a mixture of different
‘types’ of food’.

Omega-3 oils, which help keep your
heart and arteries healthy, are mostly
found in oily fish so try not to have
meat every day.

You can find out more about how
your diet could affect your health, not
just for now but for the future, talk
to your doctor, look on the internet or
go to your library.

Winter Tips
• Try keeping a flask by your bed, so 

you can have a hot drink without 
getting up in the night.

• Eating regular meals each day can 
give you warmth and energy. In 
case it is too cold to go out to the 
shops or if you are ill, keep a stock 
of basic foods in your store 
cupboard. Useful foods include long 
life milk, tinned meat or fish, long 
life fruit juices, breakfast cereals, 
pasta, rice, crispbreads, plain 
biscuits, tea, coffee, cocoa, canned 
and dried soups.

FoodFood

DRAFT

DRAFTencouraging us all to eat five portionsencouraging us all to eat five portions
of fruit and vegetables every dayof fruit and vegetables every day

tinned/frozen products and long-lifetinned/frozen products and long-life

Other healthy foods include:Other healthy foods include:

• Wholemeal bread, potatoes, rice, • Wholemeal bread, potatoes, rice, 
pasta and cereals.pasta and cereals.

• Fish, meat, beans and pulses • Fish, meat, beans and pulses 
such as lentils.such as lentils.

• Milk and dairy products.• Milk and dairy products.

It is important to drink It is important to drink at leastat least
6 to 8 cups of liquid every day, to6 to 8 cups of liquid every day, to
help prevent dehydration. Try tea,help prevent dehydration. Try tea,
coffee, water, fruit juices and fruitcoffee, water, fruit juices and fruit

Many people do not like cooking, orMany people do not like cooking, or

Omega-3 oils, which help keep yourOmega-3 oils, which help keep your
heart and arteries healthy, are mostlyheart and arteries healthy, are mostly
found in oily fish so try not to havefound in oily fish so try not to have
meat every day.meat every day.

You can find out more about howYou can find out more about how
your diet could affect your health, notyour diet could affect your health, not
just for now butjust for now but
to your doctor, look on the internet orto your doctor, look on the internet or
go to your library.go to your library.

Winter TipsWinter Tips
• Try keeping a flask by your bed, so • Try keeping a flask by your bed, so 

49



FRUIT
VEGETABLES

STARCHY
FOODS

(Like cereal 
and potatoes)

FAT
SALT

SUGAR

Remember... 
Each year 5.5 million people in the UK
get food poisoning!

Food poisoning is serious, particularly
if you have a weakened immune
system, kidneys or other condition
that makes it harder for your body to
cope. 

Food Safety
• Throw old food away - do not be 

tempted to eat it, even though you 
hate waste. 

• Always read the storage 
instructions and keep food…

- in the right place;
- at the right temperature;
- for the right amount of time.

• Keep a list on your freezer door of 
what is in there and when it must 
be eaten by. 

• Your sense of taste or smell can 
be weakened by medication or 
illness. Even if a food is within the 
date do not eat it if it looks, tastes 
or smells off.

• Left-overs should be stored in the 
fridge and eaten within two days.

• Be strict about keeping raw meat 
away from other foods and always 
wash your hands and all utensils 
after you have touched these 
foods. 

• Regularly clean kitchen surfaces 
and keep pets’ food away from 
yours. 

• Never put open cans in the fridge.

• Keep pests out. Seal packets of 
dried foods like flour and breakfast 
cereals tightly.

• Never re-freeze food once it has 
started to thaw. 

• Double check that sausages, 
burgers and poultry are cooked 
right through. When pierced with a 
knife the juices that run out should 
be clear, not bloody.

• Do not reheat foods more than 
once. 

40 | Food

DRAFT

DRAFTFood poisoning is serious, particularlyFood poisoning is serious, particularly

system, kidneys or other conditionsystem, kidneys or other condition
that makes it harder for your body tothat makes it harder for your body to

• Throw old food away - do not be • Throw old food away - do not be 
tempted to eat it, even though you tempted to eat it, even though you 
hate waste. 

• Always read the storage • Always read the storage 
instructions and keep food…instructions and keep food…

- in the right place;- in the right place;
- at the right temperature;- at the right temperature;
- for the right amount of time.- for the right amount of time.

• Keep a list on your freezer door of • Keep a list on your freezer door of 
what is in there and when it must what is in there and when it must 
be eaten by. be eaten by. 

• Left-overs should be stored in the • Left-overs should be stored in the 
fridge and eaten within two days.fridge and eaten within two days.

• Be strict about keeping raw meat • Be strict about keeping raw meat 
away from other foods and always away from other foods and always 
wash your hands and all utensils wash your hands and all utensils 
after you have touched these after you have touched these 
foods. foods. 

• Regularly clean kitchen surfaces • Regularly clean kitchen surfaces 
and keep pets’ food away from and keep pets’ food away from 
yours. yours. 

• Never put open cans in the fridge.• Never put open cans in the fridge.

• Keep pests out. Seal packets of • Keep pests out. Seal packets of 

50



Falls  | 41

FallsFalls
The consequences of
falling get more serious
as we get older
• Be aware of your limitations

It is not safe to stand on a wobbly 
chair. Do not do things just 
because you have always done 
them!

• Keep active
Exercise can improve strength, 
balance and co-ordination, all of 
which may prevent you falling.

• Enjoy the sun
Vitamin D is in some foods but we 
get most of it from the sun. It helps 
to keep our bones healthy and 
strong.

• Take care of your feet
More than 80% of us have one or 
more foot problems. 

• Check your medicine
Some can make you dizzy. If you 
are worried ask your doctor 
about this.

• Separate glasses
Using bifocals can be 
disorientating. Talk to your optician 
about having two different pairs of 
glasses.

In your home…
• Have bright lights.
• Keep the floor free of clutter.
• Repair or replace carpets that are 

worn.
• Check that mats and rugs are 

secure and have no tears or 
wrinkles.

• Put a non-slip mat in the bath.
• Put grab rails in the bathroom and 

on the stairs.
• Keep things that you use often in 

easy reach.
• Consider having someone come in 

to help with domestic tasks or 
personal care (contact the local 
Council or private companies).

• Find out about getting a personal 
alarm (contact your local Age UK).

DRAFT

DRAFT• Be aware of your limitations• Be aware of your limitations
It is not safe to stand on a wobbly It is not safe to stand on a wobbly 
chair. Do not do things just chair. Do not do things just 
because you have always done because you have always done 

• Keep active• Keep active
Exercise can improve strength, Exercise can improve strength, 
balance and co-ordination, all of balance and co-ordination, all of 
which may prevent you falling.which may prevent you falling.

• Enjoy the sun• Enjoy the sun
Vitamin D is in some foods but we Vitamin D is in some foods but we 
get most of it from the sun. It helps get most of it from the sun. It helps 
to keep our bones healthy and to keep our bones healthy and 
strong.strong.

• Take care of your feet• Take care of your feet
More than 80% of us have one or More than 80% of us have one or 

• Separate glasses• Separate glasses
Using bifocals can be Using bifocals can be 
disorientating. Talk to your optician disorientating. Talk to your optician 
about having two different pairs of about having two different pairs of 
glasses.glasses.

In your home…In your home…
• Have bright lights.• Have bright lights.
• Keep the floor free of clutter.• Keep the floor free of clutter.
• Repair or replace carpets that are • Repair or replace carpets that are 

worn.worn.
• Check that mats and rugs are • Check that mats and rugs are 

51



If you do fall…
• Do not panic. Stay still for a few 

minutes and try to calm down. 
• Call for help.
• If you cannot get up try to get to 

something that will keep you warm 
while you wait for help.

EXERCISE helps prevent:
• High blood pressure. 
• Heart disease.
• Stroke.
• Poor circulation.
• Obesity. 
• Joint and bone problems. 

It also provides valuable social contact,
reduces anxiety, helps with depression
and makes you feel more alert,
energetic and cheerful! 

Talk to your doctor about different
types of exercise or contact a qualified
instructor to discuss your needs or any
physical conditions that might be
affected. It is important to… TAKE IT
SLOWLY - Be aware of your limitations
and build up your exercising gently.
ENJOY IT! - This is what will keep you
going back.

You are significantly less likely 
to fall if you exercise regularly!

More exercise 

More strength,
balance and

stamina

More
confidence

42 | Falls

DRAFT

DRAFTreduces anxiety, helps with depression

ENJOY IT! - This is what will keep youENJOY IT! - This is what will keep you

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT
You are significantly less likely You are significantly less likely 
to fall if you exercise regularly!to fall if you exercise regularly!

More exercise More exercise More exercise 

More strength,More strength,More strength,
balance andbalance andbalance and

staminastamina
confidenceconfidenceconfidence

DRAFT

52



NotesNotes

Notes  | 43

......................................................................................................................................................................................

......................................................................................................................................................................................

......................................................................................................................................................................................

......................................................................................................................................................................................

......................................................................................................................................................................................

......................................................................................................................................................................................

......................................................................................................................................................................................

......................................................................................................................................................................................

......................................................................................................................................................................................

......................................................................................................................................................................................

......................................................................................................................................................................................

......................................................................................................................................................................................

......................................................................................................................................................................................

......................................................................................................................................................................................

DRAFT

DRAFT............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

..............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

..............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

..............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

..............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

..............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

..............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

..............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

53



Contact DetailsContact Details
Road & Transportation
Services
Driver Vehicle Licence 
Agency..........................0870 240 0009 
National Express ..........0845 600 7245
National Rail Enquiry
Service ..........................0845 748 4950

Carers’ Support
Carers UK ....................0808 808 7777
NHS Carers Direct ........0808 802 0202
Princess Royal Trust
for Carers ......................0844 800 4361
Careline ........................0845 434 5440

Benefits & Money Worries
Benefit Enquiry Line........0800 882 200
Job Centre Plus ............0800 055 6688
National Debtline ..........0808 808 4000
The Pensions Advisory 
Service ..........................08456 012 923

Holidays
SAGA ............................0800 096 0089

Crime & Community Safety
Crimestoppers ................0800 555 111
Domestic Violence 
Helpline ........................0808 200 0247
Fire, Police & Ambulance................999
Victim Support ..............0845 3030 900

Utilities & Keeping Warm
British Gas ....................0845 600 5090
Gas Safe Register™ ....0800 408 5577
Energy Efficiency 
Advice ............................0800 512 012
Gas Leaks/Transco ........0800 111 999
National Grid 
Emergency......................0800 111 999
Warm Front Grant ........0800 316 2805
Winter Fuel Payment ....0845 915 1515

Advice
Age UK (Seniorline) ......0808 800 6565
Better Government for 
Older People ................0207 553 6530
British Healthcare 
Trades Association ......0207 702 2141
Cancer Link ..................0808 808 2020
Community Legal 
Advice ..........................0845 345 4345
Consumer Direct ..........0845 404 0506
Drugs Helpline ................0800 776 600
Financial Services 
Authority ......................0845 606 1234
Floodline ......................0845 988 1188
National Alcohol 
Helpline ........................0800 917 8282
NHS Smoking Helpline 0800 022 4332
Trading Standards ........0845 404 0506

Helplines
Samaritans....................0845 790 9090

44 | Contact Details

DRAFTCarers UK ....................0808 808 7777Carers UK ....................0808 808 7777
NHS Carers Direct ........0808 802 0202NHS Carers Direct ........0808 802 0202

for Carers ......................0844 800 4361for Carers ......................0844 800 4361
Careline ........................0845 434 5440Careline ........................0845 434 5440

Benefits & Money WorriesBenefits & Money Worries
Benefit Enquiry Line........0800 882 200Benefit Enquiry Line........0800 882 200
Job Centre Plus ............0800 055 6688Job Centre Plus ............0800 055 6688
National Debtline ..........0808 808 4000National Debtline ..........0808 808 4000
The Pensions Advisory The Pensions Advisory 
Service ..........................08456 012 923Service ..........................08456 012 923

HolidaysHolidays
SAGA ............................0800 096 0089SAGA ............................0800 096 0089

Crime & Community SafetyCrime & Community Safety
Crimestoppers ................0800 555 111Crimestoppers ................0800 555 111

Utilities & Keeping WarmUtilities & Keeping Warm
British Gas ....................0845 600 5090British Gas ....................0845 600 5090
Gas Safe Register™ ....0800 408 5577Gas Safe Register™ ....0800 408 5577
Energy Efficiency Energy Efficiency 
Advice ............................0800 512 012Advice ............................0800 512 012
Gas Leaks/Transco ........0800 111 999Gas Leaks/Transco ........0800 111 999
National Grid National Grid 
Emergency......................0800 111 999Emergency......................0800 111 999
Warm Front Grant ........0800 316 2805Warm Front Grant ........0800 316 2805
Winter Fuel Payment ....0845 915 1515Winter Fuel Payment ....0845 915 1515

AdviceAdvice
Age UK (Seniorline) ......0808 800 6565Age UK (Seniorline) ......0808 800 6565
Better Government for Better Government for 
Older People ................0207 553 6530Older People ................0207 553 6530
British Healthcare British Healthcare 
Trades Association ......0207 702 2141Trades Association ......0207 702 2141
Cancer Link ..................0808 808 2020Cancer Link ..................0808 808 2020
Community Legal Community Legal 
Advice ..........................0845 345 4345Advice ..........................0845 345 4345

54



Your Copy - 
e.g. Contact Details

and Local Information

55



© CSEF 2012. The Safety Education Foundation is a division of CSEF 
(Registered Charity Numbers: 1103344 and SCO37714)
Telephone: 0161 477 5122  Fax: 0161 480 4504

Your Copy
Here

56



 

Review of Bracknell’s Subsidised Bus Services 2011  

In the light of public sector funding cuts, Bracknell Forest Council has to reduce its spending. It is 
reviewing all its activities, including the support it provides to certain bus services.  

Council funding is used to support bus services, which supplement those that are provided by bus 
operators on a commercial basis.  However, the Council is considering ways of reducing the support 
it provides to the bus network as part of meeting its planned budget. 

The Council is reviewing all of the bus services that it supports, and so is keen to understand how, 
and why, you use the buses in Bracknell Forest and what the implications would be if a service that 
you use was reduced or withdrawn. This will inform the decision making process, taking into account 
your views and opinions.   

A number of service changes are being considered to make savings, and so the consultation seeks 
your views on these, as well as your thoughts and comments on other bus services that the Council 
provide.  

Possible options being considered are:  

Service When it operates Possible options  

151 Bracknell – Binfield ! Wokingham Mon ! Sat Withdraw service 

53/153 Bracknell – Binfield Mon – Sat (daytimes) Halve Frequency  

152 Bracknell – Winkfield Mon – Sat Halve Frequency  

162 Bracknell – Ascot High Street Mon – Sat Halve Frequency  

156 The Parks Mon – Sat Withdraw service 

171/172, 153, 194  Evening & Sunday Withdraw services 
153/154 Binfield – Bracknell ! 
Bulbrook 

Early evening Withdraw services 

598 Little Sandhurst – Camberly Tuesday and 
Thursday 

Withdraw service 

 

In addition we are also reviewing the following supported services, and would like to hear your views 
on them:  

1 Ascot – Windsor Mon – Sat Daytimes 
108 Bracknell – Jennets Park Daily 

199 Warfield Park Mobile Home Site Wednesday & Friday 

4c Bracknell – Maidenhead School Holidays 
Monday – Friday 

154 Bracknell – Bullbrook Monday – Sat 
daytimes 

53 Bracknell – Wexham Hospital Monday – Saturday 
Daytime 

153 Bracknell – Warfield Mon – Sat Daytime 

 

Agenda Item 4

57



 

To help understand how these services are used and the impact that any changes would have on you 

please complete the attached questionnaire for each service that you travel on.  

If you are responding on behalf of a group or organisation then you may wish to comment more 
generally on the review. If so, we would welcome your thoughts, so please e!mail or write to us at 
the details below. 
 
All responses will be treated confidentially, and will be reported anonymously.  

Post back the questionnaire using the free post envelope attached (don’t worry about a stamp, it’s 
free). The questionnaire can also be completed online at www.bracknell!forest.gov.uk/bussurvey. 
 
If you have any questions, need help in completing this questionnaire or would like a copy of this 
document in large print, Braille, easy read, any other format or a translation into other languages 
please call 01344 352 000 or email pt@bracknell!forest.gov.uk.  

The consultation will run from 16th January until the 30th March 2012.  

58



 

1. Which of the Council Supported Services do you 

use (list is provided on the previous page)?  

Please state the service number, as well as 

where you get on and off the bus.   

If you use more than one of  the services 
that we are consulting on, please 

complete a questionnaire for each 

service  

 

...................................................................................................................................................... 

2. Why do you use this service?  

 
PLEASE TICK   ALL THAT APPLY 

Work              !     School/College/Education        ! Health (not hospital)                     !  

Leisure           !              Supermarket/food shopping  !      Other Shopping (on high street)    ! 

Hospital         !         Visiting friends and family        !      Various    !
      

Other (Please state)      ..................... 

3. How often do you use this service?  PLEASE TICK   ONE BOX ONLY 

Daily              !  2!3 times a week       !   Weekly        ! 

Monthly                 !  Less often                   ! 

4. When do you use this service?  PLEASE TICK   ALL THAT APPLY 

Weekday (0600! 0900)       !  Weekday (0900! 1700)       !  

Weekday (1700 ! 1900)       !  Weekday (1900 ! 2330)       !  

Saturday day time        !  Saturday evening        !  

Sunday day time        !  Sunday evening             !  

5. Do you use Community Transport? i.e  Keep 

Mobile   
PLEASE TICK   ONE BOX ONLY 

Yes      !  No     !  

6. If yes, how often do you use it?  PLEASE TICK   ONE BOX ONLY 

Daily              !  2!3 times a week       !   Weekly        ! 

Monthly                !   Less often    ! 

59



7. If the frequency of your bus service was 

reduced, how would it affect the way you 

travel?  

PLEASE TICK   THOSE THAT APPLY 

Comments  

I would use an alternative bus service   !   

I would  use the same service but travel at    ................................... !
a different time         
I would go by private car (as driver)  !    ................................... 

I would go by private car (as passenger)  !   ................................... 

I would walk or cycle     !  ................................... 

I would not make the Journey   !   

I would use community transport or a taxi !   

I don’t know      !   

Other (Please state)    ! ..................... 
8. If this service was withdrawn, how would it 

affect the way you travel?  

PLEASE TICK   THOSE THAT APPLY 

Comments  

I would use an alternative bus service   !   
I would go by private car (as driver)  !    ................................... 
I would go by private car (as passenger)  !   ................................... 

I would walk or cycle     !  ................................... 

I would not make the Journey   !   

I would use community transport or a taxi !   

I don’t know      !   

Other (Please state)    ! ..................... 
9. Do you have any comments on the proposed 

changes, or any supported bus services? 

(Please continue on a separate sheet if required)  

If you are representing a group of people 

or an organisation, please state who you 

represent.  

 

.................................................................................................................................................................. 

.................................................................................................................................................................. 

………………………………….............................................................................................................................. 

60



10. What is your postcode?  

This will only be used for the purpose of 
showing which areas responses have 

come from;  it will not be passed on to 

any other parties  

 

........................................................... 

11. Are you? PLEASE TICK   ONE BOX ONLY 

Male        !  Female  ! 

Under 18 !   18-34   !   35-49 !   50-64 !   65-79 !   80+! 

To which of these groups do you consider you belong?   

White   Mixed   
Asian or Asian 

British 

 

English/Welsh/Scottish/ 
Northern Irish/British 

! 
 White & Black 

Caribbean 
! 

 
Indian ! 

Irish !  White & Black 

African 
!  

Pakistani ! 

Gypsy/Irish Traveller !  White & Asian !  Nepali ! 

Showpeople/Circus 
!  Any other Mixed 

background  

 

!  

Bangladeshi 
! 

Any other White background  

 

!  
 

  
Chinese 

! 

      Filipino ! 

   
   Any other Asian 

background   
! 

Black or Black British 
 

 
Arab/ Other Ethnic 

Group 

  
 

 

African  !  Arab !    

Caribbean  !  Other ethnic group   !    

Any other Black background   

 

!  
 

  
 

 

 61



Do you consider yourself to have a health problem or disability which has lasted, or is expected to last, 
at least 12 months? 
PLEASE TICK   ONE BOX ONLY 

Yes        !  No  ! 

Are your day!to!day activities limited because of your health problem or disability? 
PLEASE TICK   ONE BOX ONLY 

Yes        !  No  ! 

How would you describe your religion / belief? PLEASE TICK   ONE BOX ONLY

None              !     Christian (all denominations) ! Hindu                   !  

Muslim           !              Buddhist                                    !      Sikh      ! 

Jewish           !              Other                                           !      Please state …………………………………… 

 

Is this the first questionnaire on the supported bus service that you have completed?
 

Yes            !       No ! 

(If you would like to comment on another bus service that you use then please pick up another 
questionnaire ) 

 

Thank you for completing this questionnaire  

Please post back the questionnaire using the envelope attached (don’t worry about a stamp, it’s 
free).  

The closing date for questionnaires and comments is the 30th March 2012. 

62


	Agenda
	2 Minutes and Action Points from 14 December 2011
	3 'Be Smart Be Safe' - Older People's Handbook
	'Be Smart Be Safe' Handbook - 2012 Edition

	4 Bracknell Forest Bus Services Consultation

